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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or in this report misleading.
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Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the first listed beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has eight beauty and slimming centres with
five in Hong Kong and three in Mainland China including one in
Beijing, one in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen. All these centers
are under two brand names “Sau San Tong” (original brand of the
Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015). All these centers provide
unique all-rounded personalized beauty and slimming services,
health management and anti-ageing treatment programs etc..
Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow
up services, all programmes enable customers to achieve their
desired skin quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest
manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services, the Group was proud to
receive the Diamond Prize from the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao-Bay Area Top 100 Brands Festival and is honoured to be
the “Caring Company” for 10 consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-Il and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and with
the additions of international famous brands.
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With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and franchise co-operation business, the
Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class services to our
customers.

In order to fully utilise the idle funds of the Group, the Group has
expanded in several new business segments in recent years.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the
Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 2 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium sized
corporations which include both listed and non-listed corporations
and businessmen in various industries. This money lending
business will diversify the income stream of the Group and
broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the capital use of
the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company and its
shareholders.
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other gains or

losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative

expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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106,405 126,462 245,470 269,826 184,423
10,184 6,196 6,520 7,022 21,890
(57,473) (84,978) (97,948) (93,875) (83,783)
(94,669) (116,980) (116,783) (116,120) (103,377)
(35,553) (69,300) 37,259 66,853 19,153
(1,871) (2,712) (4,382) (4,157) (3,165)
(37,424) (72,012) 32,877 62,696 15,988
(9,434) (13,700) (13,771) (25,143) (11,400)
(46,858) (85,712) 19,106 37,553 4588
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818,773 860,960 960,152 921,458 537,907
(4,619) 14,794 30,872 12,364 14,876
814,154 875,754 991,024 933,822 552,783







On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year Under
Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

2020 was not a good year for the Group and the entire retail
and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The gross domestic production
rate in the first quarter of 2020 was decreased to 6.8% in the
PRC and reduced by 5.3% when compared with the fourth
quarter of 2019 in Hong Kong approximately which are the lowest
level in recent years. In addition, the stock markets in Hong
Kong was very volatile. This coupled with the threat of US-China
trade war and protests in Hong Kong have negative impact on
consumer confidence. As a result, the revenue and performance
of the beauty and slimming business were not satisfactory. The
local financial market also performed not well which resulted in
unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s securities investments
business. However, the product distribution business of the Group
in China still performed satisfactory.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the Group
has also proactively identified different opportunities of acquisitions
and development.
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Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 20
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, the Group has long been upholding
its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’ needs in
a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner, abiding by
industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau San Tong has
been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by side with its
customers! Establishing the market leading position is a hard-
earned achievement. We will continue to adhere to the Group’s
principles, conduct and service attitude while introducing new
elements by launching innovative treatments and products,
leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the legends
of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management team
puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development
in the long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a
prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates
its care for the community, supports various welfare activities
and sets up a voluntary team to participate in various voluntary
services. For a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has
been awarded the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our
continuous care and support to the society.

Looking ahead into 2020, Hong Kong and the PRC economy
and retail business is expected to be challenging. Although the
outbreak and the spread of the COVID-19 may still have negative
impact on consumer confidence in Hong Kong and the PRC, the
Group will strive to capture any business opportunities available.
We will continue to examine the situation carefully and adjust the
Group’s development and investment strategies in the effort of
diversifying its business, which in turn will enable us to respond to
the ever-changing market environment and maximise the interests
of the Group and our shareholders as a whole.
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In respect of the financial performance during the Year Under
Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from approximately
HK$2,423,176,000 (including revenues from distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care products of HK$2,365,690,000) in the
previous year to approximately HK$1,359,223,000 (including
deduction of revenues from distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products to HK$1,291,980,000) in the Year Under Review,
representing a 43.9% decrease.

Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under Review was
approximately HK$106,405,000, with a decrease of approximately
HK$20,057,000 as compared with approximately HK$126,462,000
for the same period last year. The decrease in overall revenue
was mainly due to decrease in revenue from the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products. Revenue from distribution
sale of cosmetic and skin care products changed from positive
contribution of approximately HK$2,365,690,000 of last year to
deduction of approximately to HK$1,291,980,000 of the Year
Under Review. During the Year Under Review, general and
administrative expenses amounted to HK$94,669,000 representing
a decrease of approximately 19.1% or HK$22,311,000 from
approximately HK$116,980,000 for the same period last
year. The selling and distribution cost decreased by 32.4% or
HK$27,505,000 from approximately HK$84,978,000 in last year to
approximately HK$57,473,000 of the Year Under Review. Due to
its dedicated efforts in controlling the operating costs, the Group
was able to maintain or reduce the level of expenses.

As a result, the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$95,376,000 of last year has been narrowed
to the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$56,489,000 of the Year Under Review which is mainly due to
the Group’s dedicated efforts in controlling the operating costs.
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On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board
and our hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their valuable
contributions and strong support for the Group. | would also like
to take this opportunity to welcome our new member, Mr. Au
Siu Lun, an independent non-executive director of the Company
joining us in the Year Under Review. In addition, | would like
to give my heartfelt appreciation to our ex-independent non-
executive director Mr. Roberts, Daniel William who have resigned,
in the Year Under Review, for his long-standing support and
contribution to the Group. We will continue to provide the market
with high quality service and adapt the most stringent controls and
adaptable strategies to drive the Group’s business development
in the long term. With our persistent dedication and relentless
efforts, | am confident that the Group will be able to overcome
any obstacle ahead and adhere to its vision and mission to bring
rewarding returns to all shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Business Review

In 2020, the economic negative growth rate in Hong Kong and
China was 8.9% and 6.8%, respectively, indicating an economic
downturn as compared with the growth in last few years. In addition,
the threat of US-China trade war also has negative impact on
consumer confidence. Beside, the outbreak and the spread of
novel Coronavirus disease clouded the economic landscape of the
worldwide and China. The spread of COVID-19 directly affect the
beauty and slimming industry. As a result, the beauty and slimming
industry in Hong Kong and China do not perform very well. The
performances of the Group also were less satisfactory in both Hong
Kong and China.

For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,359,223,000, representing a decrease
of 43.9% from approximately HK$2,423,176,000 of last year.
This was mainly attributable to a deduction of contribution
from distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products by
approximately HK$1,073,710,000 and loss reduction from
securities investments by approximately HK$7,915,000 in the
Year Under Review. In the recent years, given that the Hong Kong
population maintains the predominance of females over males
and that many Hong Kong females belong to the high-earning
group, females have become an important consumer group for the
Hong Kong retail market with the beauty and slimming services
and products being increasingly viewed as daily necessities more
than luxuries. On the other hand, the demand for beauty and
slimming services and products in the PRC was stimulated by
the increasing middle-class population. The Group is positive
that the performance of the Group will be improved by riding
on the industry leadership in Hong Kong and China and sound
reputation and customer confidence it has built over the years.
The business of distribution sales of cosmetic and skin care
products of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong
Fang”) recorded a revenue of approximately HK$1,291,980,000,
representing a decrease of 45.4% from approximately
HK$2,365,690,000 of last year. Such decrease was mainly due
to Dong Fang’s sales channel through certain online platform (JD.
COM and TMALL.COM) were terminated which resulted in the
decrease in revenue of Dong Fang. Although Dong Fang revenue
decreased in this tough period, Dong Fang is regarded as a stable
source of revenue of the Group.
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Loss for the year was approximately HK$46,858,000 as compared
with loss for the year of approximately HK$85,712,000 of last
year. As the Group adopted a stringent cost controls to lower
the cost, the selling and distribution costs and general and
administrative expenses recorded approximately HK$57,473,000
and HK$94,669,000 respectively in the Year Under Review,
representing a decrease of 32.4% and 19.1% from approximately
HK$84,978,000 and HK$116,980,000 of last year.

On 5 July 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of
100% equity interest of Earth Limited at the consideration of
HK$20,000,000 through issuance of 67,567,567 new shares of
par value of HK$0.16 each of the Company. Earth Limited is the
sole legal and beneficial owner of a residential property in Hong
Kong. On 1 June 2020, the Group entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with the purchaser, an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed
to sell its entire equity interest in Earth Limited together with the
outstanding amount owned by Earth Limited to the Group at
the total consideration of HK$23,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The
transaction shall be completed upon the fulfillment of conditions
precedent. As at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Disposal has not been completed yet.

As at 31 March 2020, cash and bank balances increase
to approximately HK$402,023,000 (2019: approximately
HK$391,743,000), whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio
of current assets over current liabilities) was 3.88:1 (2019: 4.67:1),
reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.
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Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year Under Review, the slower Hong Kong and China
economy growth; the threat of US-China trade war and the
outbreak of the novel Coronavirus disease have negative impact
on consumer confidence. In addition, the Group faced various
negative factors such as increasing costs of sales, rising salaries
and inflating rentals. The beauty, slimming and spa business was
unavoidably affected to some extent in the Year Under Review,
but we backed by the strengths of the brand recorded a slight
increase of 0.8% in the overall revenue of this business segment
as compared to last year.

The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong and the PRC. With extensive
experience in the industry and committed efforts for innovations,
the Group has continuously introduced sophisticated

services and products of the highest quality for

its customers, winning the long-term favour of its

customers for its beauty and slimming products

and services while successfully establishing brand

advantages and customer loyalty. To further fortify

its leading position in the industry, the Group has

introduced a number of new beauty, slimming and

anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the N

Year Under Review.
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As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed by
the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards
over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong and the
PRC. It was strongly trusted by its customers. With increasingly
intensive market competition, some industry players have resorted
to all possible means including dishonest sales methods to
secure their market shares. Coupled with various beauty and
slimming incidents during recent years and seriously weak and
outdated government supervision, customer confidence has been
impaired. This, however, has at the same time encouraged the
customer demand for quality beauty and slimming services. In
view of this, the Group will continue to provide quality products
and services. Maintaining the strategy of winning with quality,
the Group will continue to leverage on its
professional and outstanding beauty and
slimming technologies, bring its brand
visibility to the full play, and operate with
honest and honour, in order to win over
the consumers’ trust, secure a wider
business coverage in the high-end market
and thereby realise sustainable growth and
return.
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Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-II business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongging city (8 provinces and cities
in total). In the Year Under Review, the business of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products of Dong Fang recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$1,291,980,000, representing a
decrease of 45.4% from approximately HK$2,365,690,000 of
last year. Such decrease was mainly due to Dong Fang’s Sales
channel through certain online platform (JD.COM and TMALL.
COM) were terminated which resulted in the decrease in revenue
of Dong Fang. Although Dong Fang revenue decreased in this
tough period, Dong Fang is regarded as a stable source of
revenue of the Group.
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Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing
in the development and introduction of products embedding
advanced technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio
of health and beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its
customers a wider array of sophisticated product choices. This will
in turn further enhance the attraction of the brand name Sau San
Tong and ensure the Group’s leading market position.

Going forward, the Group will continue to launch different safe and
effective products that meet the different needs of its customers,
helping them to achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that
the segment of distribution of health and beauty products will
continue to make a stable contribution to the Group’s results in
the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong
brand visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous
market in the PRC back in early 2004 and effectively laid a solid
foundation in the beauty and slimming industry in China ahead
of its counterparts, reaping a sizeable market share. Envying
the outstanding achievement of “Sau San Tong”, competitors,
imitators and even fakers began to spring up like mushroom
on the PRC market where the entry barrier to the industry was
relatively low. To tackle the situation, apart from establishing high-
end flagship centres in China to help clearly identify ourselves, the
Group specially combined the name of our founder, Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley with its brand name to form the new brand of
“SREHME HE” to establish the uniqueness of the brand, using
it to fully explore the PRC market while letting the market and
consumer more easily distinguish the genuine “Sau San Tong”
brand and its inherent quality and professional products and
services, protecting the consumers’ rights. Since the efforts to
developing the franchise cooperation business in full sail since
December 2010, we have entered into more than 100 franchise
co-operation contracts as at 31 March 2020. The existing number
of franchise co-operation shops also put “skR EHHEFE” on the
top position in the beauty and slimming industry in China.

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

Rig - XREREBER

AEB RS KA WHE - EEDIHBRRE
AEEBEBRRERRAENIESEEE TR
EMBERZEND ZEMR  BOETERRER
XPERME  BEERBETRESZEREL
EmEE {ME—FPRATETE REZR
5177 ERAKERIEN TS Z REMAT -

BERK  AEERBESHLERETP&E
FX ABELZE SREMR - KREF AR
B AR - RAIEE RERXTEM
DD MR AREBERATEEEEELRTE

BN ER A 1E TS

AEBBEEBEB IR Rmig 2 BYHE
B BR_ZFENFNEEFERZEATS -
BRARAEETEZXARABTEDIRER
BRERATSEREE - ARMEFE |2
BE/AT - N ETEMERE  EFBEMHEE
ZHEFEHT BOEEZUEREBOREE
B BRRI REEBREENTEFRZMHE
EEEMRE B ST ST RO - R
BIMAREMBL 2 TR REEMELES - K
MMz ME—FBIE - BIREMESZE |
ZEHmEEmAATEDS  EHENEE
EERSBPELIEHE ImERE-—EEE
RBEEZERNRE  REHEEEEZD - A%
B _—T-TFE+_AEZHERAMBAER
B BE_ZT-TF=A=1+—80 #HMAZF
THEB100f MBEEIERH - WEMBAIESE
HATLIREMESZ | BEHRTEER LM
BITEZBE -



Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-
and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and
other recognised securities markets in the overseas as well as
wealth management products purchased from banks and other
financial institutions, with a view to generate additional income
outside its retail business, to widen its revenue base and minimise
the risks of the Group on the overall, in order to enhance the
capital use of the Company as well as the overall interests of the
Company and its shareholders. This new segment of securities
investments has good contribution to the revenue and profit of
the Group in last few years. In the Year Under Review, the stock
market is very volatile and the securities investment business
does not performed satisfactory. During the Year Under Review,
the Group has recorded a loss of approximately HK$32,405,000
from its investments in the Hong Kong stock market and unlisted
equity fund outside Hong Kong. The investment portfolio included
investments in a variety of industries including construction, real
estates, internet service, retailing, food and beverage, finance,
industry and education, with the objective of minimising the risks
while maximising the return. As at 31 March 2020, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss amounted to approximately
HK$76,969,000.

Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group has the business of money leading in order
to better utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns to
the Company. The Group provided both secured and unsecured
loans with terms ranging from several months to 2 years. The
Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$13,991,000
for the Year Under Review. As at 31 March 2020, the loans and
interest receivables from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$119,076,000.
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Outlook

Despite of the unsatisfactory performance in the Year Under
Review, the Group will continue to consistently maintain a positive
attitude to explore, research and develop more sophisticated and
effective health and beauty products and professional treatments,
in order to meet the pursuit and demand for beauty and health
by the ladies in Hong Kong and China and in turn achieve stable
growth and enhance the performance of the Group’s core
business. Meanwhile, the Group is also devoted to the training of
its people, and has specifically devised training courses targeted
at the employees of the franchise co-operation shops on the
mainland market, with the aim to ensure the consistence in the
quality of operation and services of the beauty, slimming and spa
centres across different places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate and
timely investments in securities, money lending and properties,
with the objectives of generating additional return, broadening its
revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital use and further
promote the performance of the Group in different areas. The
Group will meticulously select sound investments with high return
potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate on bringing
its strengths, customer base, reputation and other advantages into
full play in order to actualise stable growth of its core business.
This will be complemented with careful investments in the effort to
bring along more rewarding returns to our investors.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional training
to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality. Moreover,
the Group is the first slimming company in Hong Kong to set up
a free health services hotline to provide consultation services on
weight management. This move is targeted to take care of different
walks of society through suggesting to those looking to improve
their body the correct ways for a balanced diet, free of charge.
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Awards #8I15

Sau San Tong Hoidings Linded
HAEREENMLE

REE Y SHERRRE— B
ESERRAREE  NABEE
F $%@EA /% ﬁ/mlﬂ:ﬂ_agﬁ
1% 5 40 A SE IR SRS h SO BT
.:BJDNG Ko AR ERAE AR
,9 - BRI 2 Mk o

Widely recognised and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group
was proud to receive the Diamond Prize from the

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao-Bay Area Top 100 C

Brands Festival during the Year Under Review and
is honoured to be the “Caring Company” for ten
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consecutive years.
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Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking REBBEBRINK—BEEBRBAZRSARSE
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer % RNESEETIH IS I BIREEE
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During ) o REBERCEFE —MAEEL TR
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular ZEH ERBERAKIGINEEZERE » TR
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its TBSRADER °

yearning for physical perfection.

SCIEE T « Make@Wish

MEEREE HONG KONG

BHMERREE, HEERHRE!

Help the children with severe illness by
making their wishes come True!

[Ma2:5100s -Enar S Bh b, @ -
3 BT RIS B B 22 2020 AR E— K, r i

Donme$1 000 above to help those children, and

receive a Sau San Tong 2020 Calendar as thank you gift. I ’
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2020 were approximately
HK$402,023,000 compared to approximately HK$391,743,000
as at 31 March 2019. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0% (2019:
0%), based on total of bank loans of HK$Nil (2019: HK$NIl)
and the net assets of approximately HK$814,154,000 (2019:
approximately HK$875,754,000). As at 31 March 2020, liability of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$234,879,000 (2019:
approximately HK$200,761,000), including trade and other
payables of approximately HK$187,988,000 (2019: approximately
HK$164,237,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of our
subsidiary, Dong Fang and contract liabilities of approximately
HK$11,607,000 (2019: approximately HK$20,090,000). The liability
is intended to be financed by internal resources of the Group. The
liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities was 3.88:1 (2019: 4.67:1), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group
has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial
products.
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Capital Reorganisation

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 10 June 2019, the
special resolution approving the Capital Reorganisation (Share
Consolidation) was duly passed by way of poll. Every 8 issued
and unissued shares of HK$0.02 each in the then existing share
capital of the Company was consolidated (“Share Consolidation”)
into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.16 each (“Consolidated Share”);
and it took effect on 11 June 2019.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting
in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the
use of proceeds is as follows:

— approximately HK$40,000,000 was used for the development
of the Group’s money lending business;

—  approximately HK$20,000,000 was used for repayment of
the outstanding amount due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
under the Convertible Note;

—  approximately HK$30,000,000 was used for the development
of securities trading business;

—  approximately HK$16,000,000 was used for acquisition of
a residential property in Hong Kong through acquisition of a

subsidiary;

— approximately HK$7,000,000 was used for renovation of
office and shops; and

—  approximately HK$6,128,000 was used for working capital.

The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$232,872,000 was
unutilised at the date of this report.
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Net Assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$814,154,000 compared to approximately
HK$875,754,000 as at 31 March 2019. No bank deposits
and trade receivables (2019: bank deposits and certain trade
receivables of approximately HK$7,003,000 and HK$38,304,000
respectively) have been pledged for certain banking facilities of the
Group. There are no other charges on the Group’s assets as at
31 March 2020 and 2019.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 272 (2019: 352)
employees. During the year, the Group’s total staff costs
amounted to approximately HK$69,917,000 (2019: approximately
HK$93,664,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2020 there is an aggregate of 40,975,339 outstanding
options to subscribe for 40,975,339 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 24 February
2016.
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Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty
and slimming services and products into necessities, coupled
with the continued growth of the middle class in China, the
demand for quality products and services will remain on the
upward momentum in both Hong Kong and the PRC. As such,
the Group will continue to spare no efforts in the development
and introduction of different sophisticated and innovative
treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to nurture
our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new
customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach under
the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating environment

mS iPRO

1] 1]

at present.

BTL VANGILISH ME BTL EMSCULPT

BTLEXILIS ULTRA 360

BTL X-WAVE™

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong,
the Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different
social media platforms in order to increase the awareness of the
younger generation for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO,
and thereby broaden the Group’s customer base. In terms of the
PRC market, the Group will continue to improve brand visibility of
our brands name.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.
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Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 32, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of
the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with major in General Finance from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui had worked in Corporate Restructuring
Services for an international accounting firm. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and
securities investment.

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in September 2017. He is also the
chairman of nomination Committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Bachelor of Arts in
2001 and has obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Education from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Chan has over
11 years of experience in education and investment. Mr. Chan
has the following Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
certificates: Dealing in Securities, Derivatives, Corporate Finance
and Asset Management. Mr. Chan is currently the Court Member
of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the Standing
Committee of the University of Hong Kong Convocation.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 56, is a Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2016, holds a bachelor
degree of Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He
has over 14 years’ experience in foreign equities investment. He
was the investment manager of several investment funds in Japan
including Yasuda Trust & Banking Corporation Limited and Fuji
Investment Management Company Limited. He also specializes in
merger and acquisitions, his clients cover major reputable Japan
corporations. Mr. Togo has been serving as the chief executive
officer of a consultancy firm in Japan since 2000. He is also
currently participating in a few big property projects in Tokyo and
Osaka.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged
71, joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent
Non- Executive Director, and also as a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Ms. Chiu has years of banking
experience in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. She was
Senior Vice President at the Republic National Bank of New York
for almost thirteen years and was responsible for the management
and investment of third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu is an
associate and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Ms.
Chiu was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong
Government in 1992 and as Cavaliere by the lItalian Government
in 1999 and she is Montblanc Outstanding Business Lady of
the year 2002 in Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime
Investments Group Limited. She is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of CPM Group Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1932) and China
Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1515).
Ms. Chiu is licensed to carry out asset management business
under Type 9 regulated activity under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 40, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is the chairman of the audit committee,
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He has over 17 years of working
experience in accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring
and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree
of business administration from City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lau is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also is a Certified Public Accountant in
Washington State, USA. Mr. Lau was an executive director of
Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1679).

MEMuZt AF#@MEt((HMLE]) ++—
o RZE—=F+AMBEAEEKAEER A
ZEUFPTEFUREZZER  FTHES
eRREEBENE - BETHMEARTE KR
EREZFCRITEBLR BLTEHME
EEMERITERABE " BET=F2A "
HENAERF-ERFFPEGZEERKRE - K
TANERARTAGzETIREREL - K
TR NN —FEESEBREET AR T4 -
SR—NAANFEERANBNEZZ B R 1B
B TR_ZE_FEABESEEERDD
EuMEXRE - BT RARRKREEEBRA
A2 EE - METHATZREBMARA R (MR
FrEREMAR - RO - 1932) REHE
BIERARAR(BRMERLETAR - BRHK
5% 0 1515) 2 B ERITE S - B T IRIE
BBEBESTIEF S NBPEKRFIATHEE
BEIZEEIHHE N EEEEEBZFEA -

2EREE(TRKE]D  W+5% - BIULIENTT
EE RN-_ZT—AF+_ANBEAEE-FA
RARBZEZEGCER FHEESRESR
ZEGZKE - BHERBRBI7TESH - DER
E BEHEEARLSRERELSR - BIAER
EHBEBHMASZHEBE ITREEELTEN -
REEAERRNESHAMATETERERE
BRI 2 HESFTAD - 2L A S ARITFEIER
BRAG(BZAERLEMAT - RO
1679) ZHITESE o

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#H %



Mr. AU Siu Lun (“Mr. Au”), aged 44, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in May 2020. He is the
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. He graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with a degree in Finance in 1998, Mr. Au has over 22
years of working experience in Finance, Information technology
and strategic planning for enterprise. He is the Co-founder and
Chairman of a FinTech company which is the member of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, located in California, US.

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 36, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in
December 2015 and is responsible for the overall management,
business strategy and development of the Group. She is also
involved in the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s
policies. Dr. Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the
International American University, U.S.A. and has more than 15
years of experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr.
Kwan has served as the management of a beauty and slimming
company in Hong Kong and is an Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Beauty & Wellness Association.
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The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest
of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2020, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A2 and A.2.7

Code provision A2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the
Board. The Company does not have the chairman of the Board
and hence does not compiled with code provision. The Company
has two executive directors who have performed part of the
function of the chairman of the Board.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The
Company does not have the chairman of the Board of directors.
The management of the Company considered that it was
unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to let
the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views to
all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the
management of the Company always welcomes all Independent
Non-executive Directors to communicate with them directly via
email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time
to time.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
term of office for non-executive directors is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. As
such, the Company considers that such provisions are sufficient to
meet the underlying objective of this code provision.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Takashi Togo, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William being the Non-
Executive and the Independent Non-executive Directors, due
to other unexpected important engagements, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
26 September 2019.
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Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide
all members of the board with monthly updates. Management
considers that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates
when developments arising out of the ordinary business instead
of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board to discharge its
duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review, the Executive
Directors have provided, and will continue to provide, to all
Independent Non-executive Directors updates on any material
changes to the position and prospects of the Company, which
are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the same to serve the purpose required by the code provision
C.1.2.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

Composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised of six Directors,
including two Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (resigned on 29 May 2020)

Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 May 2020)

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has one Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors which is more than half of the Board.
They are professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

Mr. Roberts, Daniel William resigned as independent non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 29 May 2020 due to his
intention to devote more time to his personal and other business
commitments. Mr. Roberts has confirmed to the Board that he
has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter
in respect of his resignation that needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 24 to 26.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval
by the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has
a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her interest and
abstains from voting.
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Eight meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set

out below:

FR BEFGHBET\XRER BEFHFEE
ZeeRIBRHEINWT ¢

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of Directors EEHNS HiE /BB HER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 8/8 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR fi 5 A& 8/8 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Takashi Togo R ELRE 8/8 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy i e 8/8 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2R E 8/8 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (resigned on Roberts, Daniel William 8/8 100%
29 May 2020) RERZZE-_ZTFHA
T+ NBEE)
Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 May Bk E(R_E_ZTF N/A N/A
2020) AAZTABEEE) TEm TiaH
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZFEREREE

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The non-executive Director is not appointed
for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election at the AGM
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Chan Ka Kin and
Mr. Au Siu Lun shall retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association. All the above retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommended their reappointment. The Company’s circular, to
be sent to the Shareholders, contains detailed information of the
above Directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.
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The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr.
Chan Ka King and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s
business development and daily management and operation
generally.

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal

clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung,
Alfred, Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (resigned on 29 May 2020),and
Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 May 2020). The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (up to 29 May 2020) and
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (from 29 May 2020). No member of the
Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing auditor of
the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHSH HEBITEERE HE =R
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (Chairman) Roberts, Daniel William 5t 4 4/4 100%
(resigned on 29 May 2020) (£E)(N=ZZE=_ZFFHA
Z+NABET)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ko I p oG 4/4 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (Chairman, Z|E#R&EL (X BT % 4/4 100%
from 29 May 2020) FAA —+jLEli>
Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 EBIEE(RZZTEF N/A N/A
May 2020) TAZ+HhBEEE) A A3
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 May 2020) and
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (resigned on 29 May 2020). The
Committee is chaired by Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the
Non- Executive Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHR HE T BITEERE HE=E
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy He izt 2/2 100%
(Chairman) (£/E)
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred ZIERESE 2/2 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William Roberts, Daniel William %t 4 2/2 100%
(resigned on 29 May 2020) (RZZEZZFRHA=+NIH
B (L)
Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on BkmAEE(R_E_FFHA N/A N/A
29 May 2020) ZTNBEEZE) TNE R TEA
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Chan Ka Kin and all
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Roberts, Daniel
William (resigned on 29 May 2020), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy,
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29
May 2020). The Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Ka Kin.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During
the year, the Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Au Siu
Lun to be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Board.
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Two meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

FA- LR
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Number of meetings
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attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of members REHE HE S BITEERE HE =
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum HHEIR A 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BRER G 5E 4 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BV HITES
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy koo 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RIERTE 2/2 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William Roberts, Daniel William %t 4 2/2 100%
(resigned on 29 May 2020) (RZZEZZTFRA=ZTI
A&HE)

Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 EXmrE(R_T=_TFH N/A N/A
May 2020) AZTNREZRE) iE A TE A
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been RARWEKIEGEERLZEE  WHEFE
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing BRBERTLEEARY 8% @itk

the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management;
(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.

BHAAAZAEEARERER D)
REREEREMAEEASEY R EL LY
B ORI MERETERRETATZAA
ARERER  (HE - R REREAR
EEREFZITAFTHRARIMWA) &
() AR AEFFAZ R AL EARE
2R -

FARBEFEERNARBZEREARERR
B

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#H %



Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that
they have complied all applicable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March 2020,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or
events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
which contemplates continuity of normal business activities and
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,380,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$319,000.
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The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee
meetings.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary following the resignation of Mr. Ip Wai
Shing (“Mr. Ip”) with effect from 9 January 2020. Mr. Chan is an
employee of the Company and confirmed that he has complied
with all the qualifications, experience and training requirements as
required by the Listing Rules. The said change of the Company
Secretary was appointed by the Board at a Board meeting
pursuant to the Listing Rules and in the opinion of the Board, Mr.
Chan possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing of the functions of the Company Secretary.

Each of Mr. Ip and Mr. Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of
the relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.
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Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: Room 2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed
“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)”
above.

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to
shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.sst-holding.
com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not
less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to

promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.
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There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and
healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where
appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.
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The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form
of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 36 on pages 203 to 210 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO“ brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 23
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’
report.

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 69 to 214.
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The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on page
138.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements on
pages 167 to 168.

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/or such
subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option plans
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable
upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31

BE-_T-_TF=A=

T—HILEFEERBRE

March 2020 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: TEIE T Z BIREZESFBNT
At 31
Subscription At Granted March
price 1 April 2019 during 2020
Date of grant Exercisable period per share RZE-NE the period R-E-E%
BRERH T BRABE mA-H Hrzi =B=t-H
HK$
AT
Directors £% 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — 1.056 2,276,420 - 2,276,420
9 March 2021 (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2) (Notej and 2)
T T R"E=RAtRZ (Wz1k2) (Wat1k2) (Wat1R2)
=A+A ZEZ-E=ANA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 18,211,250 - 18,211,250
30 August 2023 (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
“E-N\E ZE2-E\A=T-HE (H#2) (Hi#2) (##2)
NA=F— ZEC-F\A=TH
Chief Executive Officer 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — 1.056 2,276,419 - 2,276,419
B % 9 March 2021 (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2)
“TRE ZE-rE=AtRZE (zt1k2) (Hit1k2) (Wat1k2)
_H A —“Z--%=ANA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 4,552,750 - 4,552,750
30 August 2023 (Note 2) {the 2) (No‘te 2)
—2N\E ZE-\FA\A=T-HE (Hit2) (Hi#2) (Wit2)
NAZF— ZEZ=F\A=TH
Employee (£ & 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 6,829,250 - 6,829,250
30 August 2023 (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
“E-N\E 2 E\A=T-HE (Hi#2) (Hi#2) (##2)
NA=F— ZEZ-FN\A=TH
Other participant 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 6,829,250 - 6,829,250
Efhsak 30 August 2023 (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
ZE-N\E “Z-\ENA=+-BZE (H#2) (H#2) (Hiz2)
NAZ+- ZZZ=FE\A=1H
40,975,339 - 40,975,339
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.056 HK$0.387
mEFATTEE 1,066 87T 0.387 %t
Weighted average of remaining contractual life 4.14 years 3.14 years
MEFERBRNES 414E 3144
Note: Vi
1. The numbers of options and the subscription price per share have been 1. EREHELERAEBECHR - —XRENLA
retrospectively adjusted for the Share Consolidation on 23 September —+=H Zﬂxf\/\{ﬂﬁftljs_,)ﬁﬁ K o
2016.
2. The number of options and the subscription price per share have been 2. BRESERERRAEEEHR _E—NEA

retrospectively adjusted for the Share Consolidation on 11 June 2019.
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Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Year.

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$377,414,000 (2019:
HK$396,726,000).

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 132 to 137.

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
34(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

B bR 8 | — ST BT 2 AR A B AR
A EIN AEENFAMET LR FERE
BN o

BEREHEFE2FERE(—LAN—FXK
P = LEEERER)  ARalzlkmaEk
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The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (resigned on 29 May 2020)

Mr. Au Siu Lun (appointed on 29 May 2020)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Ka Kin and Mr. Au Siu Lun will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and
Mr. Au Siu Lun as at the date of this annual report and therefore
still considers them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 24 to 26.
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The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional items
of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of approximately HK$360,000 for all of
them for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

FR ENHENEZTRSRERA B HE
BRIy E :

Number of Number of senior

Directors management
EEHE SREEASHE
HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 Z8 7L E 1,000,000 7T 6 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 & 7T 3,000,000 % 7T — —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 8T 4,000,000 % 7T — 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

As at 31 March 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company: RELGIEER G ZIFE -

Share Option Scheme FBIRIER 2

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from RAFIERER D 2 R R B IRIBEA R & B R
share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the SRR TFARARIESE 2B HFEBOT

Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying issued share
shares of the capital
Subscription Company LE NN
Name of director/ price RARQTF BRTRAK
chief executive Date of grant Exercisable period per share HERH 2 RN
EE TETHABHRSE RILBAH (hEd: SRABE HRBY BA
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$1.056 2,276,420 0.30%
BEREE —Z-RF¥=A+AH 9 March 2021 1.056 7
ZZ-REZATHE
—Z--F¥=ANA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 4,552,750 0.61%
“E-\ENA=T—H 30 August 2023 0.30477C
—Z-N\FNA=1T—HZE
S AV = ol =
6,829,170 0.91%
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$1.056 2,276,419 0.30%
EE e —Z-R"F=AtH 9 March 2021 1.056 57T
ZE-R"EZATHE
—Z--F¥=ANA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 4,552,750 0.61%
“E-\ENA=+—H 30 August 2023 0.30478 7T
- N\ENA=T—BZE
ZEZ-F\R=TH
6,829,169 0.91%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 6,829,250 0.91%
BRRELE - \F\A=1—H 30 August 2023 0.304 77T
E-N\FN\A=T—HZ
S AV = =
Mr. Takashi Togo 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 6,829,250 0.91%
RfFETRAE - )\#N\A=+—H 30 August 2023 0.304 7T
—ZE-N\ENA=T—BZE
“E-=F\A=TH
Note: Wi -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief HEASNMBEGNNS LA ESERKEENEETR
Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO. AERUEYHEERASTET A TA -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2020, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

BEXHIEEEN R_E-_TF=Zf=+—
A ARFAESF - FETHRABSHEEZE 28
EATHERARARSEAHEZR(EERES
REREARBIEXVER) 2D - BB
RIBEBHRAEEOFEI2EKRRATFEECE
St SR IEGEM E T R F5.46 £5.67
BFTARRERETR S L HEEEEANE
$“ﬂ&%§%2ﬂA~%%\ﬁmﬁﬁ@%
mOOAR  MAMEAR 62T o

RZZEZZF=A=+—H  BRAREEMRE
EREBITHABHNA  THEZBIEESFR
HEEDIEXVERE2 REIDBATIHE © &
WRAEEXBEEB A AREEHITRAS%
FUA L RARERBEES KRS KNS
BBBRREFEZESELMKMEARARAH
T

RRGZIFE -

Number of shareholding

BREE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERRK 54 gl Aot
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 80,550,000 10.73%

ERATR BEmEAA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing rules
throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
report.

B ENXPREEN  R_T_TF=A=+—
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Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 27 to 44.

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have significant events after the
reporting period.

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 93.2% (2019: 99.0%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 93.2% (2019: 99.0%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 17.8% (2019: 61.2%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,000 (2019: HK$2,640,000).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003, and the
Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 31 March
2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the committee are
set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report. The
audit committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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@ pakertilly
A B (23] 2%

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 214, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BPCRBEEZEGHMASRM 2 BEBBRE
AT EBEZER D ETERZ - RARKFTE
AIFTARE 2 EERAREZBRER B ZR A M
BMERBAEZBEEITE-TRIML - REFE
SitEirgzEXETMAERTAI(TAL)
BB BE5E - MEMASRETAET
HMERET - RMBEMER 2 FZERE
RIWEEM ST BRIBFER -

PRREZFESRERMEIXRHE  REHF
BRABRGEMBRREAEZZEE - %%
SEREZERGAMBRRETREE @ 3Lt
Bz ER  MEAMATEHAFFRREL
ERER -
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The Key Audit Matter
HREKER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

B AR E R E Rz B

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements

FLHEE RS NTFREN L 2(6) - 2(K)(i) K 15

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill was mainly allocated to two cash-
generating units (“CGUSs”), namely, the provision of
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and in
the People’s Republic of China, which activities arose
from the acquisitions of | Pro Medical Skin Care
Centre Limited and Wealthy Sound Limited and its
subsidiaries respectively.

RZZEZZEF=ZA=+—H EBE5EREZFEETE
SEEMAReELEL((REEELEN]) - BIRES
RpgEARAMBREEZELBERYE - BoRlIREK
BENEREEERARILEBER AR REWER A
ZER o

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is
based on the future business prospects and the
forecast business performance of two businesses.
EE 2 AT BRI AR R ETFRI R RMIBE B 2 R
BIEBME LRI

There is inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the basis
of the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and,
accordingly, this is one of the key judgemental areas
upon which our audit focused on. There is a risk that
the key assumptions, estimates and judgements on
which the calculations are based are inappropriate
and that goodwill is misstated as a consequence.

P8 2 AT B 1 Bk P iR TR R B IR R R IR M E AR
BEESETHAREEZ  ARRRMEZEZE T2 Hp —
ERAR G - REBRERTEMKE 2 ARERR - &
FERHE R R NEE - S| BERRER R -

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BPRL A EZETEE

evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used
by the management, in particular those relating to the
sales growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount
rate;

AMEERBEMERZBRELTE LEREBHEE K
Kk BEEBEZBRIBREE

assessing and challenging cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates
and comparing historic actual results to those
budgeted so as to assess the quality of management’s
forecasts and judgements;
AEREHEREMRRECESRERA  BENEE
BEBATMT 2 EBE  URLEDBEEREERTE
B URIABEREERARAG cEx

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including sales growth beyond
the 2021 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates
and discount rates used in the model, to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of goodwill;
and

SIEEAEBRRESH CBEN AR —FFMAE
BILAONZ SHER R - REPEREREAMARERE - 1L
AEEHECREESSHEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those
that have the most significant effect on determination
of the recoverable amount of goodwill.

AEERREIAEREAHBZIAZEBRR ZEER
7T AEEE/mEAWNE S HERZERNLE 2 RE

A
(=)
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The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMELBNAEESEE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

EURERRAEZHERFE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 28(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

i8R FE AR A BT IR AN A 2(k)() ~ 2(m) ~ 19 K 28(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables Our audit procedures in this area included:
recorded initially at fair value and subsequently MR FE 2 EZEFEE

at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position. As at 31 March 2020, the
carrying amount of the loans receivable and interest
receivables were HK$117,424,000 and HK$1,652,000
respectively.
EXBYSEATEBRRBRKERRAE - MEERE
MR R IR HN AN ERERERRFE - R
ZEF=ZA=+—H EBRREFRKENEZEEES 5
117,424,000 87T M 1,652,000 8 7T °

ar o I

Y

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL")
requires the application of significant judgements
which include the identification of exposures with
a significant deterioration in credit quality, and
assumptions used in the ECL model such as the
probabilities of default, loss given default, expected
future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.

EHEERR(EHEEBIE]) 2 ERELERS
- BRESFNEEEZAEEEZ AR  REHEES
BEAMEAZKRE  MEH AR BHEBERX
FRHRARKERE AR LZELBERE -

obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group’s accounting records;

BiEEBEHERDZE 2 BA(BIER T ZE &K E KT
wE(NE))  LRAE EEBeHEH s A 22T - 7
- FHAREMER

testing of controls designed and applied in the
process of approving and granting loans, subsequent
monitoring of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

BB E R HEFGBIR R P R Gt R E R 2 5 1T
A HRERENIRRREMEREL

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology,
the governance for the ECL models, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECL;
ML ERRE A BT EEEEEEERZER
EXRBNGERAEEBRRMAZBARERREZ
B
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMOEFZENMEEEE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRAB 2 EERTFE(E)

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 28(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI E G EFIREZMZ2(K)) ~ 2(m) ~ 19 K% 28(a) (&)

Due to the significance of the aggregated amount
of loans and interest receivables (representing
approximately 11% of total assets) and inherent
uncertainty in such estimates, we considered this as a
key audit matter.

HRERERLRMEZ B EEA(REELTLN11%)
RZE[ATPABELFETHERER  HHMRZEE
REREZEIE -
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assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;
Ay ESERHGEEBEEAL EEETHEER
REDEZEN BEEHEEREBE S BRIKATELR
EEBEEEFEREMTEEAZEEM

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;

B EmERR 2 E R B RA

obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the
borrowers; and

BUSERARERSRITEZ BERER « &

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

HHHEEETZS YRNEEESHUSERTZEA
AAREEDPEREL BB ZRA -



The Key Audit Matter
EREREE

Impairment of trade and other receivables

FREWE S REREMERREZRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMELBNAEESEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 28(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

FRFEE G A FIREMZ 2(K)0) ~ 2(n) »

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s trade and other

18 X 28(a)

Our audit procedures in this area included:

receivables amounted to HK$106,900,000 and ZHFRA A EZ BEZIEFEIE

HK$14O 283,000 respectively.
RIEBE-TF=-F=+—H  BEEZEWEBESTER
H 4 fE IR N TE 5 Bl A 106,900,000 5% 7T & 140,283,000
BT o

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime
ECL and 12-month ECL to be incurred respectively,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit
loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
debtors’
position and an assessment of both the current

repayment history and debtors’ financial

and forecast general economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

FEWE 558 R H A R U R IA 2 B iR BB VIR EIBE S
MEEE Z KATEREEEBEB R 12@AEREEER
Z A GERZEREEBELSR AR KE HHIALK
e - B ANERE L REBAMBRREL ) REE
Al R TR BB EMREL 2 71 A EPRBERER
RIBEFRETRE 2 FIE -

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses.

AHEEREGIEE  WEEBREATEHREEBE A
RAEES 2 RET - BITREEARILE -

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the ageing report with the relevant sales

invoices.
FRLREWNE SHHIERERS ZEREE BHEBHEE
BE - MEFGRRBRSCBEERTESBEEEERR

#E -
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSR

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

FREWE S FRERE YR 2 RE(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RMOEFZENMEEEE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 28(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI ECAT ETFRA ML 2(K)) ~ 2(n) ~ 18K 28(a) (#&)

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade
and other receivables as a key audit matter because
the assessment of recoverability of trade and other
receivables and recognition of loss allowance
are inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

PRI BT % FE W B 5 SRR N H th B W kR 2 AT Uk |l 14
R-EBREAFE RAA/NEEKRESRERE
b FIRZ AT E Mt R R BB E G T EERNEH
% WREREBFELEARHE AMEMREREEE
BRERR R -
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assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when recognising
loss allowance.
FRECEEEMELZSZHEAERAZER (AR
BEERBE RS FARTEEBEERENRE AL
BIRARATELEEREREAE  REBERAVMBFE
BECERBR  UERTERBRRABERERIERE
BERRZIR)  HAEREMECBRBEBEF A
Bt o

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging management regarding their reasons for
not considering a provision against any unsettled past-
due balances.

HERHBEEELE YRAEEEERARSETZERIM
REZBIERTIRBBEZ RA -



The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

EEAHEMENER - R ERBRFHRM
HZER  BETrERmEAMBEmER LI
BHZZHBEHRE -

BPEGEMBERRIBEALEREEME
e PR EREAE A EEE® -

RERGAMBHRERME - RAZEERHE
EXFrERCEMER  EMEBEMERZ

BHEEAMBHRRARMREZBREPELTZ
BRBEEXREME - KHBEBRHBREL -

HEMERD AT THEEBEEMERBEX
R MRMEARESEEEE - St
o RMLEEMARE ZEE -

EEARERBEESMASHEM T EY
T & R R BB R AR D) 2 35 AR E AR B

BUBHRE  USHEAMBHRRELEEMA
¥Z&% WEEERRRBEGAM BRI
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

— HEFRARELLSTEARITEEF
iR - WIRFEZ BZRE  BERS
FEEEHABREBIERTHAR
= MmAEEEYE SREZFELE
RENBREARERE - WRMEERSFE
BEATHAREE  AARZEERE TR
EEMEFIHREV BRI EEEE -
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RBEZEM®RE B H ARG EXR
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Choi Kwong Yu.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020

Choi Kwong Yu
Practising certificate number PO5071

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

BFITRAERBRRER  SHARMCETH
BBt 2 HBERARE  YREEEE L
REBRATERPIBLEZ B BERREM
FRAR (ER) R EiEe -

SLEEREABZEET  RMNEEHAHRE
RAMBBRZBREABEZER  AME
PREASEEAZ SR o BTN R BAD RS X
FE2H BRIFERIERTATAFAREZS
FE FRBHRFERZBERT AR/ H
TR EEZFHER 2 ANERK G IEFAHIE
BEELEZ ATRH & MRAKTEREET
BERHFEE -

EHABIUZBERE 2 ERRBEER/EN

o

X
>

=

AMELAHHEBHERA
ES ]
Eb - —T-TFAA-AR

=X
HEFEZRY PO5071



Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products

— Provision of beauty and slimming
services

— Provision of franchise services

— Sale of health, beauty and related
products

— Results from investments in
securities

— Interest income from money lending

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 78 to 214 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
Bt

W 28 3
— DIHHE AL EREEM

— REEB ARG

— RENBE A RS
— HERRE  XALERES

— BRREFRE

— BEZABHA

SHERA
E7

Hip Wz 4
Hibfam kg ii 4
HHE M AR
—RRRITERFEX

REER
BEMAR 5(a)

BRBL AT A5 18
PSR 6

[&)]

FRER

BER
ZN/NETEZZ =N

FEIE R AR R

BRER 9
— BERLES

i [N
[P 77 °

2020 2019

—B-BF —ZNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
1,291,980 2,365,690
81,392 80,753
969 852

3,296 3,969
(32,405) (40,320)
13,991 12,232
1,359,223 2,423,176
(1,252,818) (2,296,714)
106,405 126,462
5,402 5,633
4,782 563
(57,473) (84,978)
(94,669) (116,980)
(85,553) (69,300)
(1,871) (2,712)
(37,424) (72,012)
(9,434) (13,700)
(46,858) (85,712)
(56,489) (95,376)
9,631 9,664
(46,858) (85,712)
HK cents HK cents
JEAL JBN
(7.71) (13.97)

FIBEF 4B ZMEBREEPBRERZ —
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Note
H et
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HFREMEE(EE) WA -
for the year, net of nil tax \BIE 2R
ltems that may be reclassified HigrngesmoEsEasvA
subsequently to profit or loss: B
— Exchange difference on — MEEINETS 2 TSR P
translation of financial EEZEHEZRE
statements of foreign operations
— Cumulative exchange loss/(gain) — — MM B AR GEHEER
reclassified to profit or loss upon DEANBRZZRETER
deregistration of a subsidiary B8, (M) 4
Other comprehensive loss FRAHEMZEER
for the year
Total comprehensive loss FRAETEHEBERESE
for the year
Attributable to: EERN
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZFE DN
Non-controlling interests I

The notes on pages 78 to 214 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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FI8F

B o

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(46,858) (85,712)
(8,454) (12,351)
17 (221)
(8,437) (12,572)
(55,295) (98,284)
(62,187) (103,595)
6,892 5,311
(55,295) (98,284)

FAR4EZHEBREA M BHRRZ —



Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amount due from a related party

Current tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a related party
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

HRBEE

YE I TP g
EREEE
REMx
BVEE

mE

RBEE
e

BRFEFABSRZEREE

FEUWE 5 KR

FENFR - e M ARG

FEUW E SRR F R
el — R RBAEA LT FIB
A e E B AR IR
BEHEFRITER
ReMREFEY

RBAE

BMAE

e & SR

Hib A SIE R ER B
FEf —RBAIEANLFIA
FEfTE HIR TR

RBEEFH

EEABERRBDAE

Note
HtaE

11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18

18

19

20
24(a)

21
22
22
23
20
24(a)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Note)

(Hiat)

120,428 130,705
28,040 —
22,000 —
985 —
23,520 25,886
194,973 156,591
8,608 16,240
76,969 113,758
106,900 194,060
140,283 104,913
119,076 90,189
2 2

199 2,016

— 7,003
402,023 391,743
854,060 919,924
11,607 20,090
1,362 12,641
186,626 151,596
17,863 —
— 402
2,686 12,144
220,144 196,873
633,916 723,051
828,889 879,642
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Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAEE
NET ASSETS EEFH
Capital and reserves EARRGHE
Share capital %
Reserves {1

Total equity attributable to owners of ~ SRERARFIEA AEZEEE

the Company

Non-controlling interests VAR
TOTAL EQUITY REREHE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
June 2020.

Chan Ka Kin
PR =X 12
Director

EZE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 78 to 214 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET
(Note)
(Hiaz)
23 11,098 —
24(b) 3,637 3,888
14,735 3,888
814,154 875,754

27
120,079 109,268
698,694 751,692
818,773 860,960
(4,619) 14,794
814,154 875,754

BN _ZT_TFERA-TABHERRE
%

Mui Wai Sum
SEER
Director

EZE

et AEEER -ZZ—AFMA - ARBEETEY
ENFEBEBMBRELENFE165% - RIFZTT
& HBARTEES - RHfEE2(C) ©

N

H

ET8EFE 214 B Z Bl A Mg HKR 2z —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #R& @& 8 %

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 —Z -ZT4F = HiEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETLE% \,
Attrbutable to owners of the Company
SRNIDTEEA
Share- The PRC Retained
based  stalutory profts/ Non-
Shere Shere Merger ~ Exchenge  payment surplus Other  (accumuleted controling Total
captal  premium Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesere Tesene losses) Totd  interests Bquity
REEE 24/
BE BORE  SBBE  ENBE RONTER  RRER  AMBE  (ZMER) af  #iREs ERSE
Note HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOO0  AKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  RKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOWD

it r TEr TEL TR TEr T TRt A TEr TEr TEn

At 1 April 2018 HZE-NERA-A 109,268 778,605 (3,637) 11,781 2022 16,689 28055 17,178 960,152 30872 991,024
Changes in equity for 2010: “§-0EZBRAE

(Lo} fprot for he yea ERIEE)/ 4 - - - - - - O K O TV ¥ )
Other comprehensie loss EhemEE - - - 8,219 - - - - B9 LY (1257

Tota comprehensiie oss)income FRRE(BE)/ ies

for the year - - - 6219 - - - (9,376 (10359%) 5311 (98.284)
Equiy-setted share-based ransaction ~~ EREERRRTRR % - - - - 4408 - - - 440 - 440
Ropropriaion to the PRO satuoy suplis B EEE 28

fesere Bk - - - - - 308 - (3280 - - -
Dhidend paid to non-controling nterests 2R ER RS - - - - - - - - - Xy 3

- - - 6219 4403 38 - (9,608) (99,192 (16,078 (115210)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-15=3=1-8 109,268 178,600 (3631) 362 6,62 19,967 28,05 (1485 860960 147% 875,754
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Attributable to owners of the Company

SRHALNERAL
Share- ~ The PRC Retained
based stafutory profits/ Non-
Share Share Merger  Exchange  payment  surplus Other  (accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium TEServe TeServe TeServe TeServe Teserve losses) Totl  interests equity

HEkE ke
Bx  BBER  GHER  EXER BAMARE  BMEE  RREE  (ZER) a%  FEREE  REEE
Notg HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOD  HKSO0
‘ ot fE fE TR T T FEr fB TR T

At 1 April 2019 R-E-1EmE-A 109,268 778,605 (3,637 3,562 6,629 19,967 28,055 (61,485 860,960 14,794 875,754
Changes in equity for 2020: TECREVERAS.
(Loss)proft for the year ER(EE)/ 1 - - - - - - - (6409 (6489 08 (4659)
Other comprefensive oss EpamgE - - - (5698) - - - - B8 1Y) (B4
Total comprefensive (oss)income EmAE(EE)YanE

for the year - - - (5,698) - - - (56,489) (62187) 6,692 (55,295)
Issue of shares i) 2l 10811 9,189 - - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000
Disoosal of a non-uholl owned subsidiry 52 EMEDA 3 - - - - - - - - - 63 £
Aopropriaion to the PRO satuory supls B e 28

resene EE - - - - - 1997 - (1.837) - - -
Diidend paid to non-conrollng nerests — 2FFERER RS - - - - - - - - (26368 (26,368)

10811 9,189 - (3,698) - 197 - (B4 (a2t (19418 (61,600)

At 31 March 2020 i B ] 120019 787,19 (3637) 213%) 6,625 21,904 805 (130911) 818778 (4619 814154

FA4EZHEBREA M BERRZ —

i

The notes on pages 78 to 214 form part of the consolidated %78
financial statements. B o
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Operating activities

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Interest income from money lending

— Fair value loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss,
net

— Bank interest income

— Cumulative exchange loss/(gain)
reclassified from equity to profit
or loss upon deregistration of a
subsidiary

— Dividend income from listed equity
securities

— Fair value gain on an investment
property

— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

— Other interest income

— Write-back of other payables

— Gain on early termination of leases

— Loss/(gain) on disposal of a
subsidiary

— Finance costs

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets

— Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables, net

— Impairment losses on loans and
interest receivables, net

— Impairment losses on goodwill

— Impairment losses on intangible
assets

— Write off of property, plant and
equipment

— Write off of trade and other
receivables

— Write off of amounts due from
related parties

— Write-down of inventories

— Equity-settled share-based payment

— Net foreign exchange loss

Operating profit/(loss) before
changes in working capital

R
I

B
i<«

EED

A& R

EIATHE :

MUEZ FBHA

— BAVER ARG Z @
BEZ A FEERFE

RITABUA

— —HMBAREH &R

— EuEFgHE

pon

EnEOBEEREY
ZEHE R (WES)

ERRAE 2 BB A
—BEREMEZR

HEME - #R X
18, (W)

H i F 8 A

¥ [l B b & 1S 5RIR

RELITES 2 W
HE—RNBLRZER
(Yas)

BERA

ME - SR RRETE

CREEETE
%H&E%%&Zﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ%”ﬁl
RIBREBE TR

W ER R FE 2
REEEFRE

R 2R EEE
mEE 2 REEE

MsHE R - Has R

Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁuﬁl%%%ﬁéﬁ&ﬁm%
YRR

SR A £ 3

WoRF &

s
RELE

4 R0 < R TE
[y = be ]

EEETEHAZ
mEEA,(BR)

Note
Bt

BN

AN AN NN

5(a)
5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

5(c)
5(c)
5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

2020 2019
—ECEH —hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
(Note)

(Hta)
(37,424) (72,012)
(13,991) (12,232)
40,380 41,488
(1,681) (1,985)
17 (221)

(14) -
(1,794) —
19 (344)
— (1,097)
(3,099) —
(57) —
375 (193)
1,871 2,712
= 410
14,934 18,645
22,530 —
806 5,806
10,480 4,578
1,823 —
485 —
531 461
446 2,668

— 166
1,911 568
— 4,403

331 197
38,879 (5,982)
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Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in loans and interest
receivables

(Decrease)/increase in contract
liabilities

Decrease in trade payables

Increase in other payables and
accrued charges

Decrease in deferred income

Decrease in amounts due to related
parties

Cash generated from operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

Note
Bt

FERD (CEM)
BMATEAABRZEREE
Bl

FENE 5 5B

ANRIR - e REMER
R E L

& W & R R A B AN

BRABORD), /i

RS

H A o 0B R A D
s

AW
FEATREE A THORAD

REREERB RS

ENFPREEEMEH
ENEEMED

SR NS

E U E

REKEED 2
REFHE

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Note)

(Hiat)
4,850 (8,558)
(3,580) (17,347)
76,815 106,145
(39,805) 17,213
(40,380) (38,478)
(8,153) 20,100
(11,279) (36,944)
48,761 26,890
— (15,852)
(402) (15,193)
65,706 31,994
(9,153) (13,181)
(7,781) (3,036)
15,731 14,502
14 —
64,517 30,279




Investing activities

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
deposits

Net cash inflow from assets acquisitions

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of an
investment property

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal
of subsidiaries

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid on bank loans

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
change

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

REED
BIEFRITEFERORLD($5h0)

BEEWNB RS RAFHE
BEWE  BERBREZAR

BE—ERAMEL
IR - B KRS
A

HERBARZRS (R,
RAFE

®E(ARREEFBZRS
R

BMEEE

ENEERES A
ENEERS ZF 8D
EXNEISR 5 ¥=)
FTIRIRITE R PSR
EERITER
ERRITERZFE
RARBEED 2R FH

RERBSESEWEM
(B2)

RENZBRERES
ZEY

EXSBHo T8

REKZRER
REZEY

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See note 2(c).

The notes on pages 78 to 214 form
financial statements.

part of the consolidated

2020 2019

—E-EE —E-NF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
(Note)

=)

7,003 (7,003)

32 72 —
(5,805) (12,977)

(258) —

204 1,306

33 (342) 8,500
874 (10,174)

(21,532) —

(1,871) —
(26,368) (21,389)

— 93,528
- (187,056)
- (2,712)

(49,771) (117,629)
15,620 (97,524)

391,743 496,482
(5,340) (7,215)

402,023 391,743

Kret - ARBER T NFNA—HERBEEBITEN
EFEBEBMBMEERE165E - RIBZTT
% ERERAEES - BHEE2(C)

FIBEF 4B ZWEBRFEMBRERZ —

B -
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Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and Room 23083,
23/F., China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial instruments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and investment property are stated at their fair
values (see notes 2(f) and 2(g) respectively).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

(a)

(b)

EHIRAGE)

BRGNS RN AEER
SR BRG] R R R
ZETHIREETEEVHRSE
R o HfEE2(c) R B BE U1 X IE
ZEMA G Y IR &5 BRE
BZER  URZFHEAMBERE
PR R AR HI SB 1 @ 5T MR AR
SEBEBZEMBR

AEERMRAZERNETHRRHBRE
o o

FEMBBRRZEUERE

REGEMBERERRAZIEER
HERBEERAELE  HERKRR
FEFAER(ZATFETFAR
mIZeMEEZERTAREKE
WEE R AR A FET R (DB BT
2(f) & 2(g)) °

WENEETEYHRELAZEZA
HERRFESEEELAE - &
TR - Mz FHE - (A R®R
REFEURZERANREE A
B WARRXZE2HREHE - ZF
et R REREEELR LT
TRBEATHEBREZZHA M
HEMmEL - HERBRY EERR
HRKRTE5BhcEERAR
FREEFELHE 2 E%E - BERER
Al pE B FAET TR o
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(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 38.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16
“Leases”, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. Except for HKFRS 16 “Leases”, none
of the developments have had a material impact on
how the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 39).

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) Int-4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15
“Operating Leases — Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease”.
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except
for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets.
The lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from HKAS 17 and remain substantially unchanged. It
also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of these consolidated financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
April 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2019. Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
options applied are set out below:

(c)

B BEZ2EB(E)

BB B ELERF 1655 A%
AZE—C:rREER - BE AR
AT E®WRAERAEEE
ESA12@EAUTZAE (R
HEE ) REEBEEEHRERI
HRAZEHEEATEEEES
ETEERIEAT7 S - WABUMER T E o
HISIABHEEREERER
- EERZEHRAVBREEA
EEHEHER MBI - B
BREARBEREZTE -

AEBEA-ZZT—NLFHA—HE
MPERBEEMBERELEAZFE16
o ARBERALEITENE
AL EHRULEACRHZER
T - hENA—BZEZIEN
B2 HAE hBEERTEET -
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined
by a defined amount of use. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 April 2019,
the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue
to be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16
and contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets which are exempt. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly capitalised leases relate
to leased properties as disclosed in note 12. For
an explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 2()).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1
April 2019),
of the remaining lease terms and measured the

the Group determined the length

lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 April 2019.
The weighted average of the incremental borrowing
rates used for determination of the present value of
the remaining lease payments was 4.57%.

(c)

B BEZ2EB(E)

(ii)

BRUABTEERBEZE

BB BRELERFE 1655
BRI EABARER B
HEAFITHRARTKEED
BAKEAHERMERE R
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%%mﬁﬁ%% FTHERIE
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RIBEZEEBVERELELFE
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FUWA—RZABEEEER
FEITENIE - AREEH THE
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial

application of HKFRS 16:

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets to leases for which the remaining
lease terms ended within 12 months from
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before
31 March 2020;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class
of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the Group relied on the previous assessment
for onerous contract provisions as at 31
March 2019 as an alternative to performing
an impairment review.
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 30 as at 31
March 2019 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019:

(c)

B BEZ2EB(E)

(i) BREAESHEERBES

(%)

TREZZE-NF=ZRA=1+—
H 2 4 & 0 & F e (55 a0 M 3
S0FTHRER )N —FE—F WM
A—HREREEBEFNE
R EAR

Operating lease commitments at
31 March 2019

Less: effect from short-term leases

Less: total future interest expenses

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019

Analysed as:
— Current portion
— Non-current portion

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 March 2019.

Lease
liabilities
HEEE
HK$’000
FET
R-ZE—-hF=A=+—HZ
BT E AR 62,917
i RREHE R (1,051)
J RIRF B R B (3,514)
R-E—NFWUA—HZHEAE 58,352
DA
— mBED 25,031
— EREBHS 33,321
58,352

EREMDBREEHEZH
E FRERREECSIKES
REEAKRTHEAGBZERE
R XRBER-_F-NEF=
A=+ —RZEARHNRREK
MR Bz E R EE
NREFEENRERIEL T
o
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The following table shows the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on line items of the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2019. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been
included.

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE

Lease liabilities HEBE
Total current liabilities RBEBEEE
Net current assets RBEETE

Total assets less current BEAERRBEE

liabilities

Lease liabilities HEBE
Total non-current liabilities B EEH %

NET ASSETS EERE
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(c) EBRBEzLB(E)

(ii)

Carrying
amount at
31 March
2019
RZE-NF
=A=+-H
ZERHE{E
HK$'000
FET

156,591

196,873

723,051

879,642

3,888

875,754

RUABHBEERBES
(%)

TRETRMNETEMBERE
ERFIOHRHYAKTER_-F
—NEFEWA—-BZHEAMBR
MKRBAZHE - WESXZE
EHPFTEZRBYITBEE

Capitalisation Carrying
of operating amount at
lease 1 April
contracts 2019
KegHE R-T-hF
Y A—H
e ZREE
HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET
58,352 58,352
58,352 214,943
25,031 25,031
25,031 221,904
(25,031) 698,020
33,321 912,963
33,321 33,321
33,321 37,209

- 875,754




(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iif)

Impact on the financial performance and cash
flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liabilities, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a positive impact on the
reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17 had
been applied during the year ended 31 March
2020.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element. These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS
16 therefore results in change in presentation of
cash flows within the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

(c)

B BEZ2EB(E)

(iii)

HEEBHBERR AL E
2T

—NFMA—BHFHE
REAREERHEARE -
K%I(Vﬁﬁﬁk%ﬂ/\)mﬁﬁ Ryl
R FEETFIE
ﬁi&ﬁ%%éé%%’ﬁ#
RBTHREREERAAER
EHRAKEHEE TEEAZ
e  BARENREEZT
—EF=ZA=+—HIFEE
REBGAERFEITRZE
SRAEL - HBEAREEHE—
TEF=HA=+—HILFE

Z?AEA§¢%£WZEE
BREATE
RizaRenERY  A5E

(ERAMAN)ABEREE
BTNZENEED R/REEESD
KRFEEED » FMN DR
ﬂéﬁ%mg’ﬁ#m%ﬁ@
M (I EA G ERE75R
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁéZEﬁﬁ
) BEHREMBAERR
TE - ERNE BN ERELE
AIF16ALERGEERE
MEXRNBERREZZ2YHGR
B
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(c)

(iif)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BTBEZE®H(E)
Impact on the financial performance and cash (i) HAEFYBHXERBEERE
flows of the Group (Continued) ZEEE)
The following tables give an indication of the TREBABRBEETBUB
estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on MELENFEIGTHAZLELRE
line items of the Group’s consolidated statement BB EREY S BT
of profit or loss and consolidated statement of MEBEBI RS ERFE 165
cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020, RAEEEBEE_T_TF=H
by adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS =t+—HIEFEZHGEEREER
16 in these consolidated financial statements to KBRS RERZEE H5T
compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts P2 DUFTEEREBEEEER
that would have been recognised under HKAS LR FATRER 2T REE
17 of this superseded standard had continued to S REBE-Z-ZTF=FA
apply in the year ended 31 March 2020 instead of = t+—BLFENERZER
HKFRS 16. Line items that were not affected by RER - MIER B B RS %
the changes have not been included. BlZE165: - WESXZEEF)
FEZBRNNEEEA -
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
Add back: related to  Hypothetical
HKFRS 16 operating  amounts for
Amounts  depreciation leases as if 2020 as if
reported under and interest under HKAS 17 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17
ek :
BmES
RiE e aitEq BUES
EREH EREH F1THET aitEa
HEES BERR EHCEHE F1THET
F1652H Z165HITE ZfEite®E 2-Z-ZF
kx| RASRX (Frzt1) BHLE
(A) (B) (©) (D=A+B+C)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Loss from operations REFR (35,553) 22,530 (23,408) (36,426)
Finance costs BEKR (1,871) 1,871 - -
Loss before taxation BRHAER (37,424) 24,401 (23,403) (36,426)
Loss for the year ERESR (46,858) 24,401 (23,403) (45,860)
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iif)

Impact on the financial performance and cash

flows of the Group (Continued)

Cash generated from operations REREEB RS
Net cash generated from operating RELEEH
activities e3R8

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Note 1:

Note 2:

EfEERE2AE 2
ENfEEREZFISED
ARBERBZAEFR

The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the cash
flows for the year ended 31 March 2020 that relate
to leases which would have been classified as
operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in
2020. This estimate assumes that there were no
differences between rentals and cash flows and
that all of the new leases entered into in 2020
would have been classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still applied in
2020. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

These cash outflows are reclassified from financing
to operating in order to compute hypothetical
amounts of net cash used in operating activities
and net cash generated from financing activities as
if HKAS 17 still applied.

(c) EBRBE22B(E)

(i) HEEHYBREREZRE

ZRE(E)
(Deduct)/add:
Estimated
amounts
related to  Hypothetical
operating amounts for
Amounts leases as if 2020 as if
reported under under HKAS 17 under
HKFRS 16 (notes 1 & 2) HKAS 17
(4% /410 -
BUES
BEHER BmEE
REEEBHE ZATHET ]
HKERR  BRSEHE E1THET
Z16RER ZfEHEE 2-B-EE
&8 (WF1R2) BELHE
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FHET
65,706 (23,408 42,308
64,517 (23,403 41,114
(21,532) 21,632 -
(1,871) 1,871 -
(49,771) 23,403 (26,368)
W1 TEBRERE 2 Mt e
HIABE-_ZT-_TFE=A
= t—BLEEAFHEREE
ZBReRERBEMET - Z
EHECEE G ERE
17HRR T _ZENRE
BZBRATASBERKE
HE - ZAtRZAE S H
RenBxTEEE B
EBEBEGHEAE17THR
ZZZTHEMAERZIE
AT FERZZ_ZF
RV 2 EBRIER S
EHENFEITRDERK
EHE HABEREY
R DTG -
Witz ZEREREBREEH

PRERLYL  UHERR
WEFHZHESRBERRK
SHELRARETH B
SR BB S G E
RIS 17 SRADAAER -
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(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

(d)

(e)

MEARRIFERER ()

SRR A IR R 2
BHETZEY BEBRARFEAR
AZRBBDFAZY - AREEENAN

ZIFEE R ERABER A LS
ERmkEMEERERATIEE
T%%ﬁﬁ$“ﬂ%ﬁAZ%¢W
BangmheakagBE ok -

BRE B R B AR 2 S
%*ﬁ%AAﬁﬂﬁmﬁmﬁ A
. CFTEEZ WSS ER

EARBZHBRRE  REBER
Rl Z W BB AR R EEIBY R
(R 2(K)(0i)) °

[k

BEREATME 2 Z5 ¢

() FTEEAEZIAFE PR
B2 MR ST RER

AEBBERBKB L AFAE
BEmZ NFEZBE R

(i) WEEHAEREERBER
WIEHFTEZ AT FE -
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(e)

(f)

Gooduwill (Continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment and are initially stated at fair value while
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. The explanation of how the Group determines the
fair value of financial assets is set out in note 28(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at
FVPL are subsequently recognised in profit or loss if
the investments does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (recycling).
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(9

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value and any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a
property interest under an operating lease and used
the property to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the Group could elect on a property-by-
property basis to classify and account for such interest
as an investment property. Any such property interest
which had been classified as an investment property
was accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 2(j)), and the same accounting policies
were applied to that interest as were applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments were accounted for as described in
note 2(j).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

(9

(h)
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(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives at the following annual
rates:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired term
of lease
10.0% — 33.3%

10.0% — 33.3%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures
Office and computer 10.0% — 33.3%
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of

Leasehold improvements

leases (whichever is

shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0% — 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and

equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the

item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the

parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the

useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(k)(ii)).
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(i)

0

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets, including cross-boundary vehicle
license, are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite (see note 14) and are subject
to annual assessment for impairment. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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0

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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0

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(K)(ii).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of right-
of-use assets using the straight-line method over the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating leases.
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0

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019 (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they were incurred.

As a lessor

Where the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Where a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by lease term.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
trade and other receivables, loans and interest
receivables, amount due from a related party,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents). Financial assets measured at FVPL
and investment property are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive),
discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk. In
measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

For all other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are
losses that are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the end
of the reporting period.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset assessed
at the end of the reporting period with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial asset’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

— existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’'s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis
or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial assets
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case, interest
income is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for

goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite

useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(m)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of loans
receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets, or if not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans
granted to borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(K)(i)).
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(n)

(o)

(o)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset. Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(Kk)(i).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2(n)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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(s)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at

fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial

recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
note 2(x)).

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.
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(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories at the end of
the reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme
under which the Group receives services or
goods from its directors, employees and other
eligible participants as consideration for share
options of the Company. The fair value of share
options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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(s)

®

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits/accumulated losses).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the end of
the reporting period unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:
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(t)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it

arises from the sale of goods and provision of services

in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product

or a service is transferred to the customer at the

amount of promised consideration to which the Group

is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts

collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes

value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty
and related products are recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts
products.

Provision of beauty and slimming services

Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised when the services have
been rendered to customers.

Prepaid beauty services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Customers who may not
exercise all the contractual rights of the prepaid
packages upon expiry of service period, and such
unutilised portion are fully recognised in profit or
loss.
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(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Franchise income

Initial franchise income is recognised upon the
grant of rights, completion of the designated
phases of the franchise set-up and transfer of
know-how to the franchisee in accordance with
the terms stated in the franchise agreement.
Recurring franchise income is recognised on a
pre-determined amount in accordance with the
terms as stated in the franchise agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is

recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(v)

W sk I HAIK A (4F)

(i) BEFFiEE)

BT BN & AR E W% F
B AR E K E T % E /M
Z W IR RS - R ER A
MR R P HER - HEAE
BRELERS 2ZEHPHR
ELRXAPREGEENE
SRR SBA - FEREE
BERAZZEMPAAZE
EZIREET AR - BEER
% B B ] R HIR R
ERXz AR EET B

7
aor ©

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#H %



(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on the acquisition of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(x)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vil)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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@

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale

of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and

slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale of

health, beauty and related products, investments in securities

and provision of money lending business.
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Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax
or other sales taxes; service income from provision of
beauty and slimming services, net of discounts; franchise
income and interest income earned from the money lending
business. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

WEEREPMERERRETH R
B EERSIEMEER CERE KA
RUER LM R R AT Z R
A INBEEBRA - LR REZEBRR
ZHREHA - FR - RUaEER I EER
WesiBRl e gEmT

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care 7§84 5 &b i & &= @
products 1,291,980 2,365,690
Provision of beauty and slimming services 12 ER & 482 iR 75 81,392 80,753
Provision of franchise services REINBEIERS 969 852
Sale of health, beauty and related HERRE - EARB@EER
products 3,296 3,969
Interest income from money lending R 2 FL B A 13,991 12,232
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRATEFABGZEHEEY
FVPL, net RHEEERFHE (40,380) (41,488)
Realised gain on financial assets at BAFEFABRCEREEZ
FVPL, net EE R FEE 7,975 1,168
1,359,223 2,423,176
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Other revenue

Bank interest income

Dividend income

Other interest income

Subsidies from the PRC government
Others

Other gains or losses

Cumulative exchange (loss)/gain
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
upon deregistration of a subsidiary

Fair value gain on an investment property

Gain on early termination of leases

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Write-back of other payables

(Loss)/gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Others

2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hfth g 25
HRITHEHA 1,681 1,985
g BUA 14 —
H A F S HA - 1,097
FR B R T A 3,460 2,421
Hh 247 130
5,402 5,633
Hiab B REE
BE M — A B AR R

EnEsoEEEm s 25

P& 5 (E518), e (17) 221
—IEREMFE 2 AT ERE 1,794 —
RERIEAE & 57 —
bE H Weas /(518 ))$ 58 54 (197)
HEMZE  HBERZHE 2 (BE)

/W R (19) 344
18 [0 H b & (< 30IR 3,099 —
HE—FMMBARZ(EB),/

& (875) 193
EHAth 189 2

4,782 563

Subsidies from the PRC government represent funds and

subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s

development and business activities.

BB R R fE 2 00 BUR B sl AN SR B 2
BREEERDRGE CES R -
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Loss before taxation is arrived after charging:

(a)

(b)

Finance costs: (a)

Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

Staff costs (including directors’ (b)
remuneration (note 7)):

Salaries, allowances and other
benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %
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2020 2019
—E_TH —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
BE R
IRITERZF B - 2,712
ETEFZW% 1,871 —
1,871 2,712
ETRN(EFRESHH
(BtaE7)) :
e R R EAMEF
60,291 78,920
AT HFGRIRETE 2 3R
9,626 11,166
R BEER G AR
- 3,578
69,917 93,664




Loss before taxation is arrived after charging: (Continued)

(c)

Other items: (c) HfbER :
Cost of inventories sold and services BEEFE LB RERS
provided* %N
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN €
Amortisation of intangible assets A ERE
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment — W WBRREE
— right-of-use assets” — EREEE"
Impairment losses on: FEEE
— trade receivables — EWE SFHIA
— other receivables — Hb W FRIA
— loans and interest receivables — BREREFE
— goodwill — HE
— intangible assets — BEEE
Write-down of inventories WREFE
Write off of: s
— trade receivables — ERE SHIE
— other receivables — HibEWFRIA

— amounts due from related parties
— property, plant and equipment

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense for a consultant

Expenses relating to short-term
leases’

Total minimum lease payments for
leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17"

— FEUEREA LR
— WX - HERRE

XA FEESEEEER

LANENGE3
ARESEg zMAL’

SARBE B G ERF 7
BOBAKENECHE

ZEEREN TR

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes
HK$787,000 (2019: HK$961,000) relating to depreciation, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 April 2019,
the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of
right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated (see note 2(c)).

BHRAERSHRTIEE  (#)

2020 2019
—EEHF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,252,818 2,206,714
1,386 1,500

= 410
14,934 18,645
22,530 —
196 541

610 5,265
10,480 4,578
1,823 —
485 —
1,911 568

= 2,233

446 435

= 166

531 461

= 825

1,000 —

= 28,784

EERE
K ¥ & 2787,0008 T(= T — L F:
961,000 7T) * #Z &R IMaT A LB

AEECRAGEBITEREVTEAER
MHRELANE 16 EE T —NFMUA
—HZEBBRIEREE - AR ERTIRIE
ERGARNE1ITROBEAKEEEZHE
ERRAEAREE - R_T-NFOA—
BT HEREREEER - ARE(FR%
BA)VEREREAENE - MIHRBE
BENEERANERERRBEEHER
THRESZESMAX - BREZHE LR
ARAEESI(RKHE2(C) °
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(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a)

loss represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Under provision in respect of prior years

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income
Tax

Provision for the year (note 24(a))

Under provision in respect of prior years

Income tax expense

(i) Hong Kong Profits Tax

HEBEBERAZHIER
2020 2019
—E-%F i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
EHFE — EBAEH
BEFEREDNR 86 1,441
EHRE — PELE
Fris®t
FRNEE (W 7 24(a) 9,348 12,244
BEFEREETR — 15
9,348 12,259
Fr3fiAX 9,434 13,700
() BEBFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$Nil) as the Company and its subsidiaries

incorporated in Hong Kong have either no

assessable profits for the year or have sufficient

tax losses brought forward to set off against

current year’s estimated assessable profits for the

year.
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(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% (2019: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect of the
undistributed profits derived prior to 31 December
2007 are exempt from the withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax
that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the directors of the Company is in a
position to control the dividend policies of the
PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at

the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
relevant countries.

(a)

REBBRRAZBEE (B)

()

(iii)

o B 13 T 12

R B 2 BB A RZA
RAFERBEDERSEHE
25% (ZZF — LF : 25%) &
o

RIBFETE - AEBERHE
ZHWBAR(HEMEAT])
—ETNF-A-BEEL
2 MZAR RSN E E A
FB ML 2 A RIS E N
BEEREEDRZETEMNE - D
R #2 5% 3% 10% 5 R S A+
FRSHL - REBEFPBEREAZ 2R
FOERBH L - AEE—
ETZLFT _A=t—HAE
2 AR5 IR ) R UK B B
RAZEERBIEMAER -

—ECEERIFE-NEF=
=+—8 BAREREIES
YRR BN R 2 IR B
RETBHATBMBATNAR
BRI EEIRB@ER DK -
WU mBPEEARE T
TN\F-A—HRBREEZKE
H i I FE - 2 0 1B i s A ] i
ERIEEE -

]

& ¢

Rt H B LB EZ

BN B A E 2 AR AEE
KIRTT 2B E R R B -
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(b)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)

accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable
to profit/loss in the jurisdictions
concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Under provision in respect of prior
years

Others

Income tax expense

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

FRIEATE 1R

BRELATE 1R 2R IIA
RERR A @ REER
A BRZBREAE

AR 2 B &
BERRBAZRBZE
AERERERLRGTE

RERAREABIAEER 2B
BReE
BRBERERVEBEZ
BB E
BEFERET R

Hitp

PSR

FEHMXERERRRFEZE

AR
2020 2019
—E-%F i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
(37,424) (72,012)
(4,045) (10,436)
8,151 11,558
(5,576) (3,446)
263 1,646
9,380 10,877
(1,569) (81)
86 1,456
2,744 2,226
9,434 13,700




Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as

follows:

Executive directors §iEs

Mr Mui Wai Sum BEREE

M. Chan Ka Kin RRirs

Non-executive directors FyfEes

Mr. Takashi Togo L Eawitd

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirey FIMELR-E-)F
(resigned on 10 July 2018) tATEEA)

Independent non-executive directors B 3iTEE

Wr. Lau Wal Leung, Afred ek
Mr.AuSiuLun feppoinied n 29~ BUkBRE(H-F 238
May 2020) LAZTAREZE)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy jcka o
Wr. Hong Po Kui, Martn (retied on ~ ZERGE(R-5-/\F
24 September 2018) NAZTEBER)
. Roberts, Daniel Willam (resigned ~ Roberts, Daniel Wiliam %
on 29 ey 2020) (RZZ_ZFRA-THR
)

RIEEE A B MRDI 5 383(1) 15
BEENZERRAOFE 28R GEM £H
HAKBE 2 EEHMMT

NE (5

Salaries, allowances and ~ Retirement scheme  Equity-settled share-based

Directors’ fees benefits in kind contributions payment expense Total

FELE §& BERENAG BirHAfs BEGEROAEER ok
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
IS CTNF CECRE CTNE CERE CTE CRRE CTNE CRSEE SR
HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 — HKS000  HKS000
fér Tt TR o TR & TR T FEn
- - 360 360 18 18 - 550 378 98
- - 360 360 18 18 - 826 378 1204
240 240 - - - - - 826 20 1,066
- - - 864 - 6 - - - 870
120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
120 8 - - - - - - 120 85
- 15 - - - - - - - 15
120 87 - - - - - - 120 8
600 547 20 1,564 3 Iy - 220 1,356 437

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no director waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments

were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

RBE_ZT-_TF=-A=+—HILFE
A BEREEHEARERRETAME -
AEEYERNARPNEZINETHE -
YRR ANA KA A 5 B 2 22 sk B B

e -
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hE&eHFALH  —R(ZE-NF:
—H)REF EMEFBRWETH
B mIMNUR(ZE—AF - OB)ALZ

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2019: one) is a director whose emolument is disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other four (2019: four) individuals are as follows: 2 EEEOT -
2020 2019
—E-FF ZZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments FehHEMNE 6,677 7,123
Retirement scheme contributions RRETEIE R 71 69

Equity-settled share-based payment BREEROGTRAX

expense — 1,376
6,748 8,568

mME(ZF—-NF  OR)ZSFALZH
BN TIHE

The emoluments of the four (2019: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ANEL
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 87T 2 —
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % L& 2,000,000 % 7T 1 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 % T & 3,000,000 % 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 & 7T E 4,000,000/%5 7T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 752 5,000,000 % 7T - 1
4 4

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no emoluments were RBEZE_ZT_ZTF=A=1+—HILFE

N AEEMEXNHE TARRERSH
AL ESEMMASEIMANREE 2 52
B SBERL A (E

paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$56,489,000
(2019: HK$95,376,000) and the weighted average of
732,956,000 ordinary shares (2019: 682,926,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of

the year

Effect of share consolidation on 11 June
2019 (note 27(a)(ii)

Effect of issue of shares on 5 July 2019
(note 27(a)(iii)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

As the Company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary 55!
shares during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, T
basic and diluted loss per share are the same. =

RENEHITEBK

“T-AFERNAT-BRGOA
Btz & (Wi 27(a)(i)

“TE-NFEARBRMET
2B (W 27(a) i)

Rl Beak

BRENEEZFARBRARARES
A &5 856,489,000/ L (= & — JL F -
95,376,000/ 7T ) & B 17 & # AR A0
¥ 15 81732,956,000 (= & — K & ¢
682,926,000) WarE T :

2020 2019
—B-FF T NF
'000 ‘000

F&® Fig
5,463,408 5,463,408
(4,780,482)  (4,780,482)
50,030 -
732,956 682,926

BREANEEERERMER -
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Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

(v)  Investments in securities

(vij  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment
results. This measurement basis excludes certain other
revenue, other gains or losses, finance costs and unallocated
expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property,
intangible assets, current tax recoverable and other assets
that are managed on a central basis. Segment liabilities
mainly exclude current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %
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(i) REHEDREERE

(i) MBAEXB(BERMBSEER
HERRE XA REBER)
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V) BHFEE
i) P&

EERA 2R HEEEETZES
ZRB - FEEREIBRETHMWKE
Hib et sk B8 - BEMA KK DK
¥ o
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(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Disaggregated by timing

of revenue recognition

Point in time
Over time

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Impairment losses on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loans and interest
receivables
— goodwill
Write-down of inventories
Write off of;
— other receivables
— property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of;
— property, plant and
equipment
— right-of-use assets

RERRARRHS

RRA-BRE
BERR

HEgR
BENA

BRAER
R

EREE

iR
~ BHESHE
- Ay
- BARHES

- 5%
Y
i

~ EHBUEE

- g BERAE

~ Mg BERAE
_ pEREE

() 2R\ -BERERE

2020
It 32
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
and skin ~ beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
PHEE HERR
iR RUZER ne MR
ARER LREH BfERE RBER #5RE H& aft
HK$:000 HKS$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000
TE7 FiEr FEr T FiEr FiEr TE7
1,291,980 - - 3,296 7,975 - 1,303,251
- 81,392 969 - (40,380) 13,991 55,972
1,291,980 81,392 969 3,296 (32,405) 13,991 1,359,223
31,240 (22,245) (1,667) 2,367 (38,957) 187 (28,475)
(7,078)
(35,553)
(1,87)
(37,424)
(9,434)
(46,858)
196 - - - - - 196
- 576 - 21 - - 597
- - - - - 10,480 10,480
- 1,623 - - - - 1,623
- - 1,911 - - - 1,911
- 219 - - - - 219
- 461 70 - - - 531
1,515 7,214 - 2,265 216 11,218
1,789 17,488 - - 3,253 - 22,530
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(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Disaggregated by timing of HBRKABEEHS

revenue recognition
Point in time
QOver time

Reportable segment revenue 1 2H7 Sl

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Impairment losses on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loans and interest
receivables
Write-down of inventories
Write off of;
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— amounts due from
related parties
— property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of intangible
assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#RE

(a) IHEE BERERE)
2019
ZENE
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
and skin-~ beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services operations products in securities lending Total
HHEE HERE
LBk REERR né e
EEEm BERE afExh EED EEpE fifa aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
RE-BEH 2,365,600 - 244 3725 1,168 - 2870827
BZEH - 80,753 862 - (41,488) 12,232 52,349
2,365,690 80,753 1,096 3,725 (40,320) 12,232 2,423,176
EEE GrE< 23,258 39,969) (2,760) 3,487 (45,122) 6,200 (54,906)
FARAFRL
(14,394)
S (69,300
EEGE 2,712)
RiaES (72,012)
SRR (13,700
FhER (85,712)
REBE:
- ERESTE (332) (1) 874 - - - 541
- EftEIGE - 5,266 - - - - 5,265
- BUERRAE
- - - - - 4,578 4,578
iz = - - 568 - - - 568
i -
- BUBZE - 2233 - - - - 2283
- EftERGE - 435 - - - - 43
- EYBEALTE
- 166 - - - - 166
- 0% RERRAE
- - 461 - - - 461
BYARER
_ 410 - - - - 410
nx KERRENE
948 11,538 288 - 2,084 72 14,930




(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) HPEE - EEREEB(E)
2020
It 32
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
and skin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AHEE HERE
Rk REZER mE EYI
ERER BERY Gl HBER F5RE HE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FiEr FEr FE7 FEr
Segment assets PHEE
— Property, plant and - 0% BERGE
equipment 4,738 14,727 - - 3,070 360 22,895
— Right-of-use assets - PREEE 5,023 21,732 - - 1,085 = 28,040
— Other assets - EfEE 258,397 128,755 1,775 2,763 338,904 143,723 874,317
Unallocated corporate assets APEAREE 123,781
Total assets EEEE 1,049,033
Segment liabilties NHEE (171,299) (45,073) (8,067) (554) (1,144) O (226,146)
Unallocated corporate FOEAFAE
liabiltties (8,733)
Total liabites BELE (234,879)
Additions to segment NRERBEERE
non-current assets 3,110 2,695 - - - - 5,805
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B # &R M =T

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 E#ZKRER AT
Annual Report 2019/20 FE®RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5385 - HUETIIR)
10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 D#WE 2
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) PBEE BEREEE)
2019
ZEnE
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
andskin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise ~ andrelated  Investments Money
products services operations products in securities lending Total
DIHHE HERR
thk  R#FEER ik e
EEED BERE AR HBER BHRE M 2t
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT FET FAT AT AT
Seqment assets HHEE
— Property, plant and - N BERSE
equipment 3,422 20,041 82 - 5,336 576 29,457
— Other assets - EfpEE 268,890 156,371 4370 3,405 384,043 124,253 941,332
Unallocated corporate assets AAEATEE 105,726
Total assets BESE 1,076,515
Segment labities Pt (138,152) (34,021) 8676) 570) (69 (151 (181639
Unallocated corporate o NG
libites (19.122)
Total liabilties BfaE (200,761)
Additions to segment non- ~ HEERHEERE
current assets 1,172 6,885 - - 3,672 648 12,917



(b) Geographical information (b) HIHEHR

The Group’s revenue from external customers REBINEEP 2WERBHAER
and information regarding non-current assets by BEEBRIZFEEI DT -

geographical locations are as follows:

2020
—EEF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
R E BB at

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers  4MEREF 2 W2k 1,305,968 53,255 1,359,223
Non-current assets EMBEE 25,727 169,246 194,973
2019
—ET-nF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H BB A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers  4MNEEEF 2 Uzs 2,384,133 39,043 2,423,176
Non-current assets EMEEE 6,074 150,517 156,591
(c) Major customers (c) FEEF
During the year ended 31 March 2020, no (2019: two) REBEE-_Z_ZTHF=A=+—H1t
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of FE HE(ZCE-LF: RE)E
the Group’s revenue. Revenue from distribution sale of FIZRMEREBWZ10% A E o
cosmetic and skin care products to these customers in ALEEFEREE S HEEE b N E
the PRC is set out below: BEMRZWEETIAT

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Customer A EFEA N/ATER* 981,021

Customer B £FB N/ATER* 361,409
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more W R g 2630 4 (5 4B g 36 10% BRA o

of the total revenue.
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Furniture  Office and

Land and and computer  Leasehold Motor ~ Construction
buildings  Machinery fixtures  equipment  improvements vehicles in progress Total
14 GHR  WOER il

k&7 BE  ERKE  EERR  NRRE RE ERIRE Gl
HKG000  HKSOOD  RKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSDOD  HKSO00
TAL TAT AT TAT AT AT TAT AT

Cost A&

At 1 April 2018 N-5-\EEA-R 110,053 24,841 6,812 10,008 62,786 19,195 493 234,188
Exchange adjustments [ - (503) (154 (183) (1,934 678) (32 (3,484)
Additions HE - 5143 280 102 5,031 2,421 - 12917
Disposals it - (9,185) (891) (1,284 (15,284) (2,97) - (29,511)
Wite of s - - - - - - (461) (461)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHERT - - - - (340) - - (340)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NEZA=1-H 110,003 20,296 6,047 8,693 50,309 17971 - 213,369
At 1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA-H 110,003 20,296 6,047 8,693 50,309 17971 - 213,369
Exchange adjustments EiRE - (364) (107) (139) (1,821) (571) - (2,498)
Additions HE - 2,452 112 284 1893 1114 - 5,805
Disposals te - 1908) 0 1687 949 0.357) - 16,897)
Wite of i - (3,698) (1,692) (1188 (17140 (268) - )
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHEAT - - (19 34 ) - - (70)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EE=f=1-H 110,003 17,778 4,345 6,883 30,775 15,889 - 186,723
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3HFE

At 1 April 2018 N-5-\ERA-H 5,984 20,183 5,202 7919 45,203 10,844 95,335
Exchange adjustments EX#E - (427) (119 (149) (1,580) 447 (2722)
Charge for the year EffE 3,390 1,852 605 706 9,031 3,061 18,645
Wiitten beck on disposals HERAD - (9,185) (891) (1,282) (14,746) (2,49 (28,549)
Disposal of & subsiciary HE-HHEAT - - - - (45) - (4)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-nEZA=t-H 9,374 12,423 4,797 7,244 37,863 10,963 82,664
At 1 April 2019 RZE2-NERA-H 9374 12,423 4,797 7,244 37,863 10,963 82,664
Exchange adjustments A - (329) (88) (118) (1,287) (344 (2,112
Charge for the year ERRE 3,390 2,560 506 605 5237 2,636 14,934
\Wiitten beck on disposals HERRE - (908) 2 (6687) 2943) (2,134 (6,674)
Wrte off i - 3,501) (1,614) (1,107 (16,978) (259) (23,455)
Disposal of a subsiciary HE-FHBAT - - (1) 30) (0) - (62)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-EE=A=1-H 12,764 10,249 3,587 5,907 21,922 10,866 65,295
Carrying amount BEE

At 31 March 2020 W-E-EF=A=1-R 97,289 7,529 758 976 8,853 5,023 120,428
At 31 March 2019 WoE-NEZf=t-H 100,679 78713 1,200 1,449 12,446 7,008 130,705
The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong under T REFNREBLREPPELOE

medium-term leases.
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Cost:
At 31 March 2019

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16
(see note 2(c))

At 1 April 2019
Exchange adjustments
Adjustment as a result of early termination of leases

At 31 March 2020

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2019

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Adjustment as a result of early termination of leases

At 31 March 2020

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2019

The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties
as its factory complex and office premises through tenancy
agreements. The leases run for a period of 2 to 10 years, at
the end of which period all terms are renegotiated. None of

the leases includes variable lease payments.

R
RZE—-hhF=A=+—H
HRERABAEVBEREENE 165
2B (AWE2(c)
RZE—NFWNA—H

b H SR
RERIASEMB AR
RZZFZFTF=A=1—H
ZIITE
RZZE—NIFNUA—H

b H AR

FRITE
RERIAEMB AR
RZE-_EF=A=+—H
REE

RZE-ZEF=A=+—H

R-ZZE—hFNUA—H

MERETIBES

B -

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET

58,352

58,352
(2,214)
(6,883)

49,255

(319)
22,530
(996)

21,215

28,040

58,352

AEECDEBRZEHERERGERET
RERPREYE - &
ZHERH2E10F  MEKRNER
HREHWE - ZFHEALTEIEREHE
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At the beginning of the year REA)

Addition through asset acquisitions BREEWEBANE (Wi32)
(note 32)

Disposal of a subsidiary E—EB AR

Additions NE

Fair value gain N ER R

At the end of the year RER

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and are
held under a long-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into Level 2 fair value measurement within
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
March 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation by
CHFT Advisory And Appraisal Ltd., an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, and its fair
value is determined using the market approach by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square foot basis using market data which is publicly
available.

No rental income was derived from the investment property
as the investment property has not been leased out during
the year ended 31 March 2020.
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2020 2019

—E-FF —FTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

= 8,001

19,948 -
= (8,001)

258 -

1,794 -
22,000 —

REWEMNES  URBERABEER

REBREYMEZ NAFER2HRPRRE
FUHEENE  UNBREFBUBHRES
135 AFEFEIMREZ =R FE
BHRAZE _RAVENE -

F_RAFEFEABARBRG AR
ZHREHRINEE=ZBAZERTAHE
WARBAEL - TABERBABESL
BEMSRBELE 2B AR -

AEBREVENR T _ZBF=A=+—
AZAFEERIEENREYEEEZE
VARERBEGEMETDATEERER
AIFTtEZ BERE - MEXFELIESE
AR ABTHISEBIISAS T T RER
REREZ LI RHEBRERRA™
BABRE °

HRBE T _TF-_A=1t—HILFE
HE WA -



Cross-

boundary
vehicle Website
license costs Total
BiRE IR #at
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET
Cost: A
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZE-N\FHHA—B -
1 April 2019 “T-NFZA=+—HK
—T-NEmA—H - 9,783 9,783
Additions through asset acquisitions FREEWERNE
(note 32) (Bfs#32) 1,470 - 1,470
Write-off Wiss — (9,783) (9,783)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_ZEF=A=1+—H 1,470 — 1,470
Accumulated amortisation and R HERRE !
impairment:
At 1 April 2018 RZE-NFHA—H - 9,373 9,378
Charge for the year FEREY — 410 410
At 31 March 2019 WZE—NF=ZAR=+—H - 9,783 9,783
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFEA—H - 9,783 9,783
Impairment loss (Note) BEBE ) 485 - 485
Write-off ik — (9,783) (9,783)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZTF=A=+—H 485 - 485
Carrying amount: BRTEIME -
At 31 March 2020 RZEZTF=HA=+—H 985 - 985
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hF=A=+—8H - - -
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Note:

The cross-boundary vehicle license entitles the Group to
undertake cross-boundary driving between Hong Kong and
the PRC for 1 year from the date of acquisition and to renew
annually with insignificant minimal cost. The vehicle license
is therefore considered having indefinite economic useful life
and will not be amortised. Its fair value is assessed using
market approach by CHFT Advisory And Appraisal Ltd., an
independent qualified professional valuer, with reference to
the available transaction prices of the cross-boundary vehicle
license on the prevailing market.

In the opinion of the directors and with reference to the
valuation carried by the valuer as mentioned above, the
estimated recoverable amount of the cross-boundary vehicle
license was below its carrying amount at 31 March 2020. As
a result, an impairment loss of HK$485,000 was recognised
in “general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For website costs, the amortisation charge for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was included in “general and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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HK$’000

FET

Cost: AN :
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FMA—H 26,501
Exchange adjustment b H SR (594)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE—NAF=ZA=+—HK

—NEFEmEA—H 25,907
Exchange adjustments ME H S8R (543)
At 31 March 2020 RZE_TF=A=+—AH 25,364
Accumulated impairment: RiHRE :
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 RZE—-N\FMNA—H -

—NFE=ZA=+—H8xK

—NEFEmEA—H 21
Impairment loss RIEBE 1,823
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_TF=A=+—AH 1,844
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :
At 31 March 2020 RZZE_TF=A=+—AH 23,520
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-—hhF=ZA=+—H 25,886
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s BEEILH T 2(e) T 2 ANEB @R A
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). iR o
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUSs)
identified according to country of operations and business
segment as follows:

Provision of beauty and slimming services — 1243272 K 4 5
Hong Kong (“Unit A”)

Provision of beauty and slimming services — 12{tEZA ki
the PRC (“Unit B”)

Money lending business — Hong Kong

Multiple units without significant goodwill

BIEER — &S

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 17.0% (2019: 16.8%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit A’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of Unit A to exceed its recoverable amount.
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R — BB(TELAL
R — FE(TEMLB])

BEAHEZZEEN

SBEARANS  BECREBEEBEZRD
REAKBzCRERSELSEURS
ELEERM)  BEBORWAT :

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
16,564 16,564
6,324 8,407

595 595

37 320

23,520 25,886

EECREFB G ERIE 6K EER
BI=FHEEREE -

EA

B AZA B EREREETERE
EBE - Wit EFARBARREREEDZE
2 EFHUBEEEL 2B RERA -
AFHLE 2B REF AEETNEFES
BEEIB(ZE—NF :3%)EH - It
HERERIWMBBEMAZBEMSE 2 RHTF
HIEER - BEREN17.0%(ZZE—N
F :16.8%)BHIR AL - FIERARLIR X
AHBRREERMBEBEMAZEBR
% BEAEHAEZZEMETERBEBIE
BEHEERZBEERA REEERE
BEETERENABTEENEIEEY
MEERBEEESERBEERRERER
MRS EFS NS 2 T8 -

BEERA - HAZRFERRZAENEED
KA EEREMAZREERBE AR
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Unit B

The recoverable amount of Unit B is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit B operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 20.0% (2019: 20.6%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit B. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit B’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2020, the recoverable amount of Unit B
calculated based on value-in-use was HK$6,324,000 which
has been below its carrying amount of HK$8,407,000. As
a result, the management realised that the performance
of beauty and slimming business under Unit B was worse
than expected due to current economic environment in
the PRC. After the assessment on the respective date, the
management determined to recognise an impairment of Unit
B in respect of the decline of operating performance. As a
result, an impairment loss of HK$1,540,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BB

BRI Bz A EREIREREBE;NERE
EBE - Wi EFERRERREEEEZE
ZAFHUBEEEL RS RERA -
AENEZE S REEAEFMEFEY
WERIB(ZE—NF:3%)HEH - Ik
BEEWAHBBBENBEEMS 2 KREF
HIERR - BEREIN20.0%(ZF— 1
F :20.6%)BH IR KB o FIERARLER X
ARTBRHRIEBEA RREEAEMLB 2 EEE
%o BEMEZZHEMEEZREERE
TEETHEENZHESRA S FLEFTHEE -
BRAERNEUBBEEEREEEY
MEHEVEEPERNLERERER
KR ARTE S T5 R B2 TEH] o

R-ZZE-_TF-ZA=Z+—8 REREE
STE BB Z A E £ 556,324,000
BT R HBRE{E 8,407,000 7T ©
th BEERAEMBE N2 XA ML
5K I A A B IR R 4SO IR 3R M R T8 A
ZoREEBHZTHE  BEERERR
ME R TRMEREN 2 RE - Bt - A&
B8 1,540,000 8 LR ER & 1B i R 1 HE

e
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(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

Merchandise

LK o

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
(note a)

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong
(note b)

Unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong
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BEEFEZREE
FE M

@ HEMBURARAZEERRE

2020
L EP Y-

—_=

HK$’000
FET

8,608

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FET

16,240

() ERAFAXAFABZZIFEDHE

REEZ EBRARES(Hita)

REBEBZIF LT A BRRES

(BfiEb)

BRBINZ I EMBRAES

DR -
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
1,232,852 2,273,917
1,911 568
1,234,763 2,274,485
2020 2019
—E-%F —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
69,849 92,269
= 12,182
7,120 9,307
76,969 113,758




(a)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (@) REBZLITRAERS
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had financial assets R-ZEBE-_TEF=ZA=+—H K&
at FVPL representing equity securities listed in EERATVEFABERZZEME
HK$69,849,000 (2019: HK$92,269,000). The fair values E 8 bR R & 69,849,000
of listed equity securities are determined based on BIT(ZZ — N HF 92,269,000/
the quoted market closing price available on the Main JL) o ETRAE S 2 A FE TR
Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the end of RETERMGEMR E2FREARTIHRZ
the reporting period. Details of significant investments WHEETE - EAREFBOT
are as follows:
2020
tg08f
Percentage
of total
issued share Market value  Percentage
capital at the end of tothe  Fairvalue Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of ~ owned by the reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) (loss) on  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period total assets for the year disposal the year
REER HegR  GAER ERLTE HE
BE BERARE fmE BEEE g/ hg/  EAk
R #RELRAR IEER RAEE  HERH A fBE bl (F8) (F8) Blke
000 % HKS 000 HKS$'000 % HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
74 Tén i fén 773 fén
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Manufacture of custom- 21,728 1.67% 17,738 19,734 1.88% (16,629) - -
Holdings Limited made fumiture, the (note) (note)
design, manufaciure W) W)
and sale of mattress
and soft bed products,
property investment,
securies investment
and money lencing.
EREm(ERMR  HEUIEA St £ER
BRAR HERDAUKED 0%
RE - EARERNE
1082 Hong Kong Education  Provision of private 20,000 3.65% 20,318 15,000 143% (4,000 - -
(Int) Investments educational services, (note) (note)
Limted investment i securies, W) ()
property investments
and money lencing.
EMRERRE  RUAAIERE REE
£ERRAT # NERERHE
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(a)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLTREFBHE)
2020
ka2
Percentage
of total
issued share Market value  Percentage
capital at the end of tothe  Fairvalue Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number o~ owned by the reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) (loss) on received for
code  company Principal activities sharesheld the Group Cost period total assets for the year disposal the year
FEER HEHE  (BRE FAATVE i3
BE HCEfks K EEEE g/ hE/  EREK
RS RRELHAR B3 RAEE  #ERH L fE hi (&) (F8) BkE
000 % HKS$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
4 fén i7:23 i Fén &
1920 Hands From Holdings  Provision of wet trades 37,330 1.42% 1,39 5017 0.48% (2,252 - -
Limited works and other wet
{rades related ancillary
works.
EREARARAT  RERKTEREMEKEE
LTk
1587 Shineroad Provision of food ingredients 10,000 147% 6,71 4,500 0.43% (300) - -
International and food additves to (note) (note)
Holdings Limted ~ food manufacturers. (W2 ()
TRERARERAT ARntEERERERAR
REAE-
1725 Etemity Technology ~ Provision of design 3,255 1.09% 4,901 4,492 0.43% (560) 30 -
Holoings Limted enhancement and (note) (note)
verficafion, offeng of ) W)
fechnical adhice and
engineering solutions,
raw materials selection
and procurement, qualty
control, ogistic and
delivery of electronic
products.
BEMRARERA RUETERLAFARRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #:& B # R &R M=t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& %S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

17 BAFEFABRSZSHMEE

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (Continued) (#&)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZ2LEHTREAZBHRE)
219
0
Percentage
of total
issued shere Market value ~ Percentage
captal at the end of to the Falr value Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of  owned by the the reporting ~ Group’s fotal ~ gain/oss) for oss)on received for
code  company Principal activities shares held Group Cost period assels the year disposal the year
REER RegE  GRRE EALTR i3
BE  GEEARE A5 BEBE ha/ W&/ EREM
BT RRALALR 1E5R RAgE  HEMA ik & it (B (%) ke
000 % H§'000 HKk$000 % HKk§ 000 HK8 000 HK8000
i 7ér AT i A i
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Manufacture of custom- 01728 1.67% 17738 36,363 3.38% (42,350) - -
Holdings Limited made furniture, the (notg) (note)
design, manufaciure (&) )
and sale of matiress
and soft bed products,
property investment,
securities investment
and money lending.
ERER(ER AR RETHRE & AER
BRAT HERBANRER 0F
RE EARERNE:
1082 Hong Kong Education  Provision of private 20,000 3.65% 20,318 19,000 1.76% 7200 - -
(Int) Investments educational services, (notg) (note)
Limted investment i securifes, (&) ()
property investments
and money lencing.
TAUR(ERIRE  REAAMERE RER
EERRAT # WERERME
1087 InvesTech Holdings ~ Design, development 32,500 2.31% 5,200 9425 0.88% 4205 818 -
Limited and provision of
communication
system, as well as the
manufacture and sales
of signal transmission
and connectivty
products.
FARRERAT R RERRLEAAR
WREERBELSEE
RgkER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& s R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk S8 FERASN - HLEITTSIR)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit 17 EAFEABREZ2EREE

or loss (Continued) (%)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) REBZLTREFBHE)
219
E-0E
Percentage
of total
issued share Market value ~ Percentage
capital at the end of to the Falr value Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of  owned by the the reporting ~ Group’s tofal  gain/(loss) for loss)on received for
code  company Principal activities shares held Group Cost neriod assels the year disposal the year
REER REHE  (1EE FMATH i3
BR  BRERE K5 ERSE ha/ W&/ EREK
RARE #REARLR IEER RAgE R A H il (BE) (E8) S
000 % HK§'000 HKkS$'000 % HK8 000 HK§'000 HK$'000
it FET FAT 7ET FET 7ET
1687 Shineroad Provision of food ingredients 10,000 147% 6,711 4800 0.45% (197) (236) -
Intemational and food additives to

Holaings Limited food manufacturers.
THERERAR  MReEESRAAREH
27 REGFNE -

1591 Shun Wo Group Foundation business 1720 193% 13441 6,063 0.61% (6,878 2,507) -
Holaings Limited of consfruction of
residentil, industrial and
commercial buldings.

THEBARARDT REET TXRAZET

HESE
Note: Investment costs in these investee companies represented Bzt - R E R BN T 2 AR A5
the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The BB S E WIS E AR Z A o A
investments in these investee companies were made by EBENBAEEAZSHIBENT
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in EHRIEE - TR BEEERAZES W
these investee companies which were made in prior years, WENTER 2B EmMS -
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) was recognised at EREEEMHEEAEARAN
the financial year end of the respective years. The fair value TEWE(BE) BE-_T=-%
gain/(loss) of these investee companies for the years ended ER-_E—NE=ZA=+—HItE
31 March 2020 and 2019 excluded fair value gain/(loss) B ZEWRENT T AT EKE
being recognised in prior years. (BB EBEEERRYA

FiEdes (EBR) -
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(b)

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 18 April 2016, the Group subscribed unsecured,

three-year maturity 2% coupon convertible bonds with

a principal amount of HK$12,000,000 from Deson

Construction International Holdings Limited (“Deson”), a

company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds had:

an option to request Deson to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued and
unpaid interest at the date of redemption on 17
April 2019 or the occurrence of other conditions
as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement; and

an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of Deson at the conversion
price based on certain conditions on the date of
conversion as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned

options, were designated as a financial asset at FVPL

and recognised at fair value.

Upon the maturity of the convertible bonds on 17

April 2019, the amount was derecognised through

redemption of the convertible bonds.

(b)

REBZF LT ABRKRES

RZZE—A"FMHA+NHE - A&EHEH
MEEEREEEEBRAG([#E
BD#THGEM Em AR )RE
EEA=FHRRER 2% 2 BRE
% N4& %A 12,000,000 T °

TEB(ERATBRBRELRREA)E
V=l

) AREERKERR-FT-NF
MA+ERBHARRRRBE
W Ek AR E 2 B A IR 2 A By
B AR R E AR BRI R
BT RARENB 2 & E#E
K

i)  RERELKRBHBHMARE
BRE T HRE - RERA RN
HRER T RRESBRSE
BB B -

ARRES Rk LR EREIETE AR
REEFABRZEMEE - WK
N ERER -

RABBEEFNR_-_Z—-NLFHA

TERREE  ZeREBEEZ
FA MR ESFRILER -
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W E 5 7R IA
R BREE

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance

Deposits by
Prepayments B FIE

Other receivables H b e U 508

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting
to HK$10,075,000 (2019: HK$29,214,000), which are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
after more than one year. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts
due from slimming business partners and consultants of
HK$68,188,000 (2019: HK$67,039,000) and advances to
staff of HK$246,000 (2019: HK$368,000).

Certain trade receivables of the Group amounting to HK$Nil
(2019: HK$38,304,000) is pledged to secure banking facility.
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2020 2019

—EZEF —ET-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
111,904 200,414
(5,004) (6,354)
106,900 194,060
39,118 16,408
17,518 16,379
83,647 72,126
140,283 104,913

AAAEBE ZHMEWHRIE . BAHR
BHRkEeAHEES PHEAREREM
% ©10,075,000%8 jo(= & — N F:
29,214,000/ 7T) + TEEAR BB —FE U
Bl ER AR o 1A HiEWE 5B
Ko EL Ath FE WK TE TE HA R — F Ik 90 s FE SR
R o

BT AN SR B 2 EL th i UK R TE A R LA B 2

TEEAE B 2 578 68,188,000 8 T (=
T — AL : 67,039,000 ) M A8 T
B 2 FIE 246,000 (=T — & -
368,000 7T) °

AREENETRERKESRBEZEL(ZZ
— JL4F : 38,304,0007%5 70 ) B I 4R A A 1
RIFITRAE



(a)

Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Less than 1 month LR1EA

1 to 2 months 1Z=2M@A

More than 2 months but less than 4 ZR2BABLR4M[EA
months

More than 4 months but less than 12 ZR4EBELR12{@A
months

More than 12 months 1218 A &

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

(a) ERERDHT

REHRIKR - BRE SR (ERHE
KRR RRBEBR) 2MRED
T

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FE&ET
30,789 184,423
67,561 7,342
8,133 999

325 1,296

92 —
106,900 194,060

JEWE SHE—RABEER SR
SOZEQ0HEIH - AEBEEHRZ
HE—BEHBEHRKITE28(@) ©
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The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.

AEBEREEFR NS AR EBRH{EN
FTARRBZEWBRAZMEXBEL
AEERDEREREREERRER R
MELREREEERR - EEEETHE

BB A A R

2020 2019

ZECEF —T-nE

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERH2 FERS st EXES MEFHH @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FHET FAT FHT

Secured loans by: HREER

— mortgage - %R 3,000 15 3,015 — - -
— personal guarantees  — fAAFER 10,500 - 10,500 10,554 1,024 11,578
Unsecured loans ERREH 118,971 1,648 120,619 82,839 350 83,189
132,471 1,663 134,134 93,393 1,374 94,767
Less: loss allowance - ERRE (15,047) (11) (15,058) (4,246) (332) (4,578)
117,424 1,652 119,076 89,147 1,042 90,189

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
5% to 48% (2019: 5% to 48%) per annum and repayable on
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.
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(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due AERERNEEAZRRSTAOT ¢
dates:
2020 2019
ZECEE ZENF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREa FEBS @t EFES MEHH @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAT FET FET FAT FET
Neither past due nor ~ EXEAH R i E
impaired A 73,233 1,652 74,885 68,282 230 68,512
Less than 1 month aHOR1EA
past due - - - - 327 327
1 to 3 months past AH1Z23EA
due - - - 249 415 664
Over 3 months past @B EA
due 44,191 - 44,191 20,616 70 20,686
44,191 - 44,191 20,865 812 21,677
117,424 1,652 119,076 89,147 1,042 90,189

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed
by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

BE 4 780 B 2 O 4 R (B PR LW B K R R
BZEEREC2RAEBHTEY
RELERETHE - BAIYFA
BEMEBED ARAKEEER
REE ZFBHNHITE28(a) °
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2020 2019

—ECEF —ET-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Amount due from a holder of FEM— & FE I i e
non-controlling interest BB AKIE 2 2
Amount due to a former director of JEN—REHB AR Z—%
a subsidiary AIEESRIA = 402

The accounts with related parties are unsecured, interest P A TERFIBAERMR - B NAEIR
free and repayable on demand. BR(EE o
2020 2019
= i
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Receipts from sales of prepaid beauty REHERNEREED
packages A 11,607 20,090
When the Group receives a deposit before the service REBRIRIEFHBRIUWEUIZ R - S48
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the NEEAAEEEAE R IRHEREETIE
start of a contract until the revenue recognised when services RN EBBIRESNSREAIE - NEEF
rendered exceeds the amount of the deposits. The Group B —FEHENILS W ERE SR
typically receives a certain deposit, which is negotiated R IEE S RIEE AT -

on case by case basis with customers, on acceptance of
slimming service contracts.
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The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as ARBEZEESBMmT
follows:

2020 2019
—BIRF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
At the beginning of the year REH 20,090 16,175
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result  FRRERW R MES
of recognising revenue during the year ZENABEZRDTIRN
that was included in the contract FUEFTABHEE
liabilities at the beginning of the year (19,843) (15,852)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result  IREEGREMELE ZE L
of provision of slimming services BEEM 74,208 85,853
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result  FERRABERURZMEL Z A K
of recognising revenue during the year BEZRD TR AFRNET L
was included in new contract liabilities ZHEeEHasEH
entered during the year (62,518) (65,753)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 % (330) (333)
At the end of the year RER 11,607 20,090
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2020 2019

—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables JEE 5508 1,362 12,641
Other payables and accrued charges HEARIERERTE A 186,626 151,596
187,988 164,237
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be Fr B e E 5 5R8 I HoAth FE - IR TE B G
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FREENBREREE -
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with AT Bat AFERTE 5 308 R H A fE T 5118
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting ZENE SFIBEREMAR 2R DT -
period:
2020 2019
—ECE®H —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand A1 E A AR B Sk EIHf 1,362 12,641
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The following table shows the remaining contractual

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the

reporting period and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16:

MBmEENFEIGHRERZHRTEHE

He

31 March 2020
—E-EF=H=1-H

1 April 2019 (Note)
“E-NEMA-BHH)

Present value
of the minimum
lease payments

Total minimum
lease payments

Present value
of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments

BEHE BEHE RERE REHEE

RREE E¢CE] RHRE EtE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT FET FET

Within 1 year 1ER 17,863 18,788 25,031 27,147
After 1 year but within 5 years 1EEESFR 11,098 11,410 33,321 34,719
28,961 30,198 58,352 61,366

Less: total future interest expenses  Ji - ARA|EF % B (1,237) (3,514)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 28,961 58,352

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set
out in note 2(c).

Bat  ARBEERBEBIENENSEBEL

MmEENE16E AU T —hFMA
— B2 EESRIEL TR - LB EATRE
EAGENS1I7THEIEACERE L
ERRAMEERE FRRAEEEBVHER
EREAIFE 65 2 HE 2 — S IEENM
E2(c) °
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(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REEMBERRRAZEHHE

financial position represents: 5 -
2020 2019
= —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH
— Provisional tax paid — BERTEHR - 976
— Balance of profit tax provision — BRABEFEEFESHE
relating to prior year s (830) (8,998)
(330) (8,022)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FARE N E6() (9,348) (12,244)
— Provisional tax paid — BEHH 7,191 10,138
(2,157) (2,106)
(2,487) (10,128)
Represented by: ATRIIEE &R ¢
Current tax recoverable AT YR B B EA R 1R
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BABMER 199 2,016
Current tax payable FEfTE AT I8
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEFEH (529) (10,038)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — BECEMEH (2,157) (2,106)
(2,686) (12,144)
(2,487) (10,128)
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(b)

Deferred tax (b) IEFEFIE

(i)

(if)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (i)

The components of deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

Depreciation
in excess of

EEZZELHERR -

Zﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁkﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BIEE EH &E/\imzm
s

the related Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
wEBRH
HEEE HibhEEs
wERE =5 a3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Deferred tax arising from: DNTEEMEEZ
ERERIE :
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FHEA—AH 967 3,196 4,163
Exchange adjustments R (64) (211) (275)
At 31 March 2019 and RZZE-NF=AH
1 April 2019 =+—8k
—NFmHH—H 903 2,985 3,888
Exchange adjustments PE 5§ 2 (58) (193) (251)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZTE-TF=R1
=+—H 845 2,792 3,637
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (i) FEZELHEERE :

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities relating to
temporary differences of HK$50,640,000 (2019:
HK$34,051,000).

BT -_ZF=ZRA=+—
H AEBUYERETRHEE
50,640,000/% 7T(= & — h
& 1 34,051,000 70 ) ERIE
EFIEEE -
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(b) Deferred tax (Continued)
(iii) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$327,096,000
(2019: HK$318,502,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$32,925,000 (2019:
HK$42,185,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits, against which the assets can
be utilised, will be available in any relevant tax
jurisdiction or entity. Of the total tax losses,
HK$107,514,000 (2019: HK$134,163,000) will
expire within 5 years and the remaining tax losses
of HK$219,582,000 (2019: HK$184,339,000) have
no expiry date under the current tax legislation.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of
the Group and the eligible employees are each required to
make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.
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(b) EEBIEE)
(iii) REFBALFEEE -

HE-Z_FTF=-HA=+4—
H - BRI AR EREE R
EEENEET AR R
RERTRFIATENREE - i)
REBIYEGRFBIEER
327,096,000 jo(= & — A,
1 318,502,000 70) K A #1
i & By 2= %8.32,925,0007%8 JT
(ZZF — 1L F 142,185,000
TL)RRELEHRIBEE - HI1E
E B4+ - 107,514,0007%8
TL(ZZ— N5 : 134,163,000
B) R AFERER - ek
N IE 548 219,582,000 7T
(ZZ—A4F : 184,339,000 %
TORBRITROAW EEWA -

AEBREFERFERBEAIEN R
REBERBEO(ZED])FDEAE &
ISRz EBER LB ATERFE([ 8
Eestdl)) - BESHIR/BHBITEA
B 7 EREFRKGTE - RiIFWER T
2 AEEETHBARLEEREESR
BERREEBBARZS%MEELE
A HIMEHER - &7 2R BIMEHR LR
& A HEW A 30,0008 7T - M&HEI1EH
ZHRENE SR



At 31 March 2020 and 2019, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
MPF scheme. At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

(@) Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.

R-E-_EFER-_TE-NF=ZR=+—
H AEBEETRERECEKZENETZ
HERBEH  TEERRESERIEZRE
RNESKRIRES AEEEHAMTKRLER
BRRGPIIEEZIBR T HBERNNR -
BEABZEBEIYAZ LilisgiESTE
WME - RZE_TFR-_ZFT—-NF=A
=+—A AEBMRESFEED 2 #
RREZFF EBaRETEZENET
ZIERZBEEE -

AEBRTEZMBRR T AETE2RE
BE2EFEHRFORING B - ZFAEIA
TEBBBTREER - AEERkTEE
BRMTBEMREMIEZBRFERAZ
AT ALK - TAEREBUT R &
MAEAEETRENBAR c2RABR
BRRENRER ZRIRENELE

(@ R=EZB—XRFE-A=-+THERHZ
BB AR RS

ARABIR -_ZE—XRF-_A-+WH
R —IE B AR R R 80 (1 B8 AR R &1
g BEBREFEEEELRT
MEERSHAERTERE EA
WEHARE R RETAHBA
R RERSBEERN 2 S B2
B BT EIcEEKRSHER
BARAINR/ SKEERHEEARZ
2RARBEE  THRABEXSR
BE(BENT  ERTESREL
ERPITEER) UREZC2ERSE
HEARRRRZEHBRRIER
BRI ERER - RIEANIREE
B2z AL
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(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
plans of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant in excess
of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular
and the approval from the Company’s shareholders in a
general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the New Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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(b) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are

as follows:

Options granted to directors:
— on 10 March 2016
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to Chief Executive
Officer:
— on 10 March 2016
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to Chief Operation
Officer:
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to a consultant:
— on 31 August 2018

Total share options

RYESF 2B -

— RZE—XRF=ZA+H
- RZE-NFNA=1+—H

T (THEE, 2 R

—RZZE—RF=A+H
- RZE-N\FENA=t—H

(b) REBEZZE-_ZFR-ZE-NEF=
BE1+—HBLEEFEZREMKR
RIEHDT

BYRTEERE 2 BRE

- RZE-N\FNA=+—H

By —RER . BaE

- RZE-NFNA=+—H

BRER

Number of Contractual life
options of options
B BREZ
L 4= EHREH
2,276,420 5.0 years %
18,211,250 5.0 years &
2,276,419 5.0 years
4,552,750 5.0 years
6,829,250 5.0 years &
6,829,250 5.0 years &
40,975,339
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(c) The number and weighted average exercise prices (c) BREHERMNMEFLTHTEEN

of share options are as follows: T:
2020 2019
—E-EE —T-NF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
In#EFEH B 15 BB AE
THEE A 1TEME 8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the REFNERITEE
beginning of the year 0.3876 40,975,339 1.0560 4,552,839
Granted during the year A ERIFH N/A FiE A - 0.3040 36,422,500

Outstanding at the end R ELRERTITHE
of the year 0.3876 40,975,339 0.3876 40,975,339

Exercisable at the end  RELA[1T{E

of the year 0.3876 40,975,339 0.3876 40,975,339
The options outstanding at 31 March 2020 had an RZEZEF=A=+T—HRHKIT
exercise price of HK$0.3040 to HK$1.0560 (2019: BRI 2 1T1EE R 0.3040 B TE
HK$0.3040 to HK$1.0560) and a weighted average 1.0560% ;L(=Z & — L4 : 0.3040
remaining contractual life of 3.14 years (2019: 4.14 B ILE1.05608 L)+ i F Y
years). FrBNFRAEIIGE(ZT— R

F o 4144F)
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(a)

Share capital (a) BA
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZRTERAE
Number of
shares
RGOEE
‘000 HK$’000
Fhz FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: LA
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and R=-Z—N\&FMA—H
1 April 2019 of HK$0.02 each —E-NF=A=1+—
;ZZE—hFmMA—H
FREMEO0.02/ET 20,000,000 400,000
Share consolidation (note (i) B& & Ot (B &2 (i) (17,500,000) —
At 31 March 2020 of HK$0.16 each RZ-Z-ZEF=H=+—H
FREE016ET 2,500,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHRE
Ordinary shares: L
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RKZ—Z—N\FMA—H
1 April 2019 of HK$0.02 each ZE-hEF=ZA=1+—
;Z_E-NFMA—H
BRMEE0.02/E7T 5,463,408 109,268
Share consolidation (note (i) R& 15 & B (B 72 (i) (4,780,482) -
Issue of shares (note (i) BT (B 72 (i) 67,568 10,811
At 31 March 2020 of HK$0.16 each WZZE-_ZTF=F=+—H
SREEO.16 57T 750,494 120,079

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EBREFHEABRUDRTRE
&z BB - AR ER D
RARBREG LR —F - A
EBRABRMARRZHGBEESR
BRFHAL -
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(a)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting hold on 10 June
2019, every 8 issued and unissued ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each were consolidated into 1
new ordinary share of HK$0.16 each (the “Share
Consolidation”). Following the Share Consolidation
which has become effective on 11 June 2019,
the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$400,000,000 divided into 2,500,000,000
shares of HK$0.16 each, of which 682,925,982
shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of shares

On 5 July 2019, the Company issued 67,567,567
ordinary shares of HK$0.16 each at an issue
price of HK$0.296 per share as the consideration
shares in acquisition of Earth Limited (note 32).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$NIl).
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(b)

L ENEP)
(i) KRGEGf

RER-F-NEXA+E
BT ZRABIAE LIRS

ZEBRER  BekERME
B0.02B T ZE#&IThAE

TROHEEHAETIREREE
016z EBR([RDE
Bt - RRGBEHEZZ—N
FRNAT—BERE  AQF
275 TE B AN & 400,000,000 %8
T P ATREEI6E T
2 2,500,000,000 & f& 15+ H
# 682,925,982 I %15 E F A
BITRBR -

(iii) R ET

RZZE—-—NEFELAREH" K
A Al LA 2 17 B § % 0.296 /&
TLETEREMEC16E T2
67,567,567 I I @ IR 1F A UK
BHXAERAT ZRERSD
(FIzE32) °

’RE
EEVFTERKNEBE_T_FF

SA=t-BLFEZRE(-F
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(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the
aggregate amount of the value of the premiums
on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account. The application of the share
premium account is governed by the Companies
Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in
a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

(c)

BEEERE®N

(i)

(ii)

BGEE

RIFFEHEARE - LAH
s BT - T AHRER
ReHMRRE HAF—%
MERERD <& EEEARE
ZHRBEBABRMEER - B
s BRIMAEFSRRDAE
ME -

BRIFEBEEZE D IRSOR S
BER - NARBAINEBE
AEEFEETINEERE
% BAAFARDEERA
ARABER 7RSS

B R

ABHRBEARRETEEK
ZHERARRRER -ZTFT
=Ft-ANRAZEEEAR
BB TEANB QR
PR K B An s B AR & 2 &
B E—SHBERNARFR
HAE-_TE=F+—-A+BZ
BERR -
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(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(w).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(s)(ii).
PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation for
the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$1,937,000 (2019: HK$3,282,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2019: HK$Nil).
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(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to profit or loss and included in other
payables and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between
the fair value of the consideration received
and the carrying amount of the net assets of
Beauty University Management Limited (“BUML”)
attributable to the non-controlling interest; and
(i) the excess of the fair value of consideration
received for the disposal of 25% equity interest in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary over the increase
in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interest.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$377,414,000 (2019: HK$396,726,000).

(c)

(d)

REMERBEN(E)

v)

H B % ERBE 1 (E)

BTN K2R E S (E A AF
TENBARREE 2@ - 2
EZBTHRMNMERESET
BB REES 2 ISEEF
He MBEABRBME » DA
Bk - Wit ASRA 7%
AR TR 2 H At A 5RIR M FE AT

Hipfd s () 2 WREAFE
HEBNIFER S XEX
BERARAR(EEARE])
BEFERAEME 2 Z58
L) &E—FFE2EMNBA
7 25% I AN 1 a1 A B A (B
Z X HEBH R R R
HEZIEEZZR -

<
PN

o 2 R

RZEZZEF=RA=+—H " AR
AR TARBEB A ZFEE
/377,414,000 8 L (ZF— N5 :
396,726,000787T) °
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(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure on the basis of net debt-to-capital
ratio of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
trade payables, other payables and accrued charges,
lease liabilities and amount due to a related party,
less cash and cash equivalents; and capital, which
comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amount due from a related party, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk as 7% (2019: 13%) and
26% (2019: 25%) of total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These take into account the customer’s past repayment
history, financial position and other factors. Trade
receivables are usually due within 30 days to 90 days
from the date of billing.
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:
Expected
loss rate
FAHEER
%
Current (not past due) EH(CREHR) 0.48%
Less than 1 month past due #EI 118 A 1.11%
1 to 2 months past due BHA1 2= 218 A 2.31%
More than 2 but less than  #EEfiBiB 2 1@ B
4 months past due BLR4EA 8.46%
More than 4 but less than  #EfiB:8 4 1@ B
12 months past due BLR121EA 20.15%
More than 12 months wARERA121@EA
past due 100.00%
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(a)

FERR(E)

FERE S %E (&)

AEBRBSRAKABBEEBR
Z R ERKE S EZ B RE
B HNERBEEEAE - AR
AEBBREZEEBRERILARM

X ERBERE Y BEERTE
E—SRAEETAESER 2B
E—HEH -

TERIABAEEHELE SR
2 EERR O RIS R
ZER

2020
=t i
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

REAE EBREE REFE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$’000

TET TET T

99,120 a71) 98,649
7,265 (81) 7,184
562 (13) 549

449 (38) 411

134 (27) 107
4,374 (4,374) —
111,904 (5,004) 106,900




(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Current (not past due) EH(CREE)

Less than 1 month past wHER 1 {E A
due

1 to 2 months past due BHA1 =218 A

More than 2 but less than 4 %1 E3#8:8 2 {#& A
months past due BLR4EA

More than 4 but less than  #HBE 4 8 5
12 months past due BLR121E A

More than 12 months past  #HFRE 128 A
due

Expected
loss rate
FEHEE X
%

0.18%

4.97%
9.90%

25.00%

50.00%

100.00%

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss

experience in current year. These rates are adjusted

to reflect differences between economic conditions

during the period over which the historic data has been

collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of

economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.

(@ FERRGE)

FEWE 5 5E (&)
2019
—T-NF

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount
BREAAE a1 REFEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
191,537 (345) 191,192
2,335 (116) 2,219
576 (57) 519
260 (130) 130
5,706 (5,706) —
200,414 (6,354) 194,060

BHBRXEARAFEZERER
FLERETE - RFHLERCIEHAE - N
2 B 1 FEE S0 BB AE IE HA TR 2 A7 7R
WU B AR DA R AN B2 (B R WK

HIRMAE R FHA
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(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@) FERRE)

Trade receivables (Continued) EREZHE(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of BREFNEIKE 5 E 7 EIERE
trade receivables during the year is as follows: gEhnT
2020 2019
— —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH] 6,354 6,139
Impairment losses recognised EERAEEE 196 874
Reversal of impairment losses B ORI ERE = (3338)
Amounts written off as uncollectible 8 A EE A UR B 2 FRTE (1,207) —
Exchange adjustments bE 5 R (339) (326)
At the end of the year RER 5,004 6,354
Other financial assets BEMEHEE
The Group considers the probability of default upon AEBRVIBHEREEREZEED
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been ZA gl - WEHH N BEZHEA
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis EERBEERHEREEM - BT
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether HEERRELTEELGN  AEE
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group HEERREAREEELN AR
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as B HERR B BR S 2 0 ) &L B
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date ETER  RANTEEAESZE
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and BRBKEBEZAEEER - FRIZ
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the HEETHEE

following indicators are incorporated:

— internal credit rating -  AEEETR

—  external credit rating (as far as available) —  HNEBEEFTAR(aEA)

— actual or expected significant adverse changes — X% UBIEBERAOER
in business, financial or economic conditions that S TEHAE KM F|E )M Fa A8
are expected to cause a significant change to the BEFHFRBRITEANE LR
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations ERE
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category Definition of category

=5 BhlzER

Stage 1 Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

E—REER BRERAREERBRAKEE M BEE
BAHBREERENRR

Stage 2 Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.

FE MR BRERARGEERRE KEHEN - BXR
HIREEREN AR -

Stage 3 Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

F=REER  ERE-EXRZEEMF BEENMGIIRK
RenEABAERER  ARRFESE
ERE

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from deposits
and other receivables and loans and interest receivables
are set out in notes 18 and 19 respectively.

(@ FERRGE)
AttEMEE (&)

AEEREDEEHREER L B
RN -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BRRABFMEEBRRE2EE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

FEREARK A2 EANBEE RO EHE AT
MR XATEREEEERRED

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
WRKATEHEE (AR SR EER N F
Hi) o

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

7B ET S AR (FBR BB ) (T FERRE 4218 ) F&
RERMNEMERKATERBEEIL TERN S
Ao

BEHRAEBRERIZS & H i B FIE
NEREKREREFEBEMEELZEE
B2 — P B ZFEEDIHR
BizE18 219 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B # &R M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& S A 5ERESN - LB ITHIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 SRITARFESMTIAZSH
of financial instruments and non financial EREERAFEEE)
instruments (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) () FEERKE)
Other financial assets (Continued) Btz @EE &)
Loans and interest receivables TERE R FILE
Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers RZZBEZZEF=A=+—80 ' &K
constituted 7% and 30% (2019: 12% and 48%) of BERARRARKEBERAZERS
the Group’s loans and interest receivables balance EASERKERLMNBHELY
respectively as at 31 March 2020. 7% R30%(ZF — NF:12% K&

48%) °

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from ZEERA MESFSE  EFERAK
the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the BREEKERMELAZEER
collaterals held, if required. The Group does not provide B o REE W EIBHTAATRES A
any guarantees which would expose the Group to SEmEREERBR 2 ER -
credit risk.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 E#ZKRER AT
Annual Report 2019/20 FE®RE



(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

receivables are as follows:

At 1 April 2018

New loans originated
Transfer

Repaid during the year

At 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019

New loans originated
Transfer
Transfer as consideration of

assets acquisition (note 32)
Repaid during the year

At 31 March 2020

By class at 31 March 2020

— Loans receivable
— Interest receivables

By class at 31 March 2019

— Loans receivable
— Interest receivables

R-Z—\FM0A—H
MELER

LS

FREER

R-ZE—hE
=A=+—H
k=ZT—NFNA—H

HELER

LB

EBRAGEWRENE
(K15£32)

FREEN

RZZE-EF
=A=+—H

R-ZE-ZH=H
=+-HRERNES
— BIRER
— EUF B

R-E-h¥=A
=t+-REREHNED
— BRER
— BIAHE

FERRGE)

AttEHEE (&)

EREARTE (&)

BURERLMBEZESEESN

™
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KR B EZRER #met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
56,227 — — 56,227
101,550 — - 101,550
(25,921) 25,921 — —_
(63,010) - — (63,010)
68,846 25,921 — 94,767
94,158 — — 94,158
(24,674) 24,674 — -
- (1,301) - (1,301)
(44,859) (8,631) - (53,490)
93,471 40,663 — 134,134
92,036 40,435 — 132,471
1,435 228 - 1,663
93,471 40,663 - 134,134
68,615 24,778 - 93,393
231 1,143 — 1,374
68,846 25,921 — 94,767
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

allowances is as follows:

At 1 April 2018
New originated

Transfer to lifetime ECLs not

credit-impaired

Impact on year ended ECLs
of exposures transferred
between stages during the

year

At 31 March 2019 and

1 April 2019

New originated

Transfer to lifetime ECLs not

credit-impaired

Impact on year ended ECLs
of exposures transferred
between stages during

the year

At 31 March 2020

By class at 31 March 2020

— Loans receivable
— Interest receivables

By class at 31 March 2019

— Loans receivable
— Interest receivables

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

RZZE—-N\FEA—H
HELE
BREXABHEES
BmEEERE
FAERR BB
FREBHEEHEBR

BmZTE

RZE—hF=A
=t+—BkK
“E-NFWUA—H

HMES ‘

BREKAEREES
BmIEEERE

FARERBEH
FRIEBEEBER

liyd-2

R-ZZBE-_ZTE=A
—H

R-B-25=f
=+-AREAES
— ERER
— RIS

R=ZB-NE=A
=+-REEAES
— ERER
— fEFIE

FERR(E)

At MEE (&)

EREARTE (&)

EHEEESER
DT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RE E-MER E=RR Foby
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
920 — — 920
(586) 586 - -

— 3,658 — 3,658

334 4,244 — 4,578
3,923 — — 3,923
(3,444) 3,444 - -

— 6,557 — 6,557

813 14,245 — 15,058
803 14,244 — 15,047

10 1 — 11

813 14,245 - 15,058
333 3,913 - 4,246

1 331 — 332

334 4,244 — 4,578




(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
related party, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. The Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely
basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of receivables
and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data.

The Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2020
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to HK$92,310,000 (2019: HK$68,532,000)
in total.

At 31 March 2020, amounts due from business
partners and consultants, advances to staff and trade
deposits of HK$635,000 (2019: HK$20,061,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to debtors that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that
only a portion of the receivables was expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific loss allowance was
recognised.

(a)

FERRGE)

AttEMEE (&)

REHHA T B E M2 M EE

REBHEXAFEZEMEREESR
e REMBEFOR - BR—F
BB A LA - D EMRITFEFUA
EReMBREEEY A5EBSB
K EREEEIREE R
BRFAELEERR - Rt EEM
FEBBRXE  AREEEEEHR
& 5 R IR 2 R SE 18 5k 3 3 A BB
ZREREBEIEELAE -

R-E-_ZF=F=+—8 &%
B EMmERRIEEEREERE
BRHRERZHIE - MBI
ZHIERE SR #592,310,000
B It(ZZF — 7L : 68,532,000
TT) °

RZEBE-ZEF=_A=+—8"  ERK
EBBEHANREBRFIE MELIR
Nz FIERE FEE 635,000 7T
(ZZ— N4 : 20,061,000/ 7T )
WEREEAERE- - E5ERE
FEW RIS N E 2 EBAE
M mERBNGHERES D
FENRIBER] UL - E It - BFER
IR E D ERR
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL
allowances is as follows:

At 1 April 2018

New receivables originated

Transfer to lifetime ECLs not
credit impaired

Impact on year ended ECLs
of exposures transferred
between stages during the
year

At 31 March 2019 and

1 April 2019
New receivables originated
Write-off

At 31 March 2020

Except for the abovementioned receivables, the Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses rate for
other financial assets at amortised costs is immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no
loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised

costs.
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RZE-\FMA—HA

MELRWTUR

BREIAEBEREERMFE
FERE

FRERRHER
FREHEERR
A%

RZF-NE=A=+—HR
“F-NHFEA-A

HE AR

A

R-E-THF=F=+—H

(@) FERRGE)

At MEE (&)

REEH A EZ AT HEE (E)

BFRAERBENEEERBFEES 2

DINT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KR EZRR EZER @t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
- 14,796 - 14,796
41 - - 41
(16) 16 - -
— 5,224 - 5,224
25 20,036 - 20,061
610 - - 610
- (20,036) - (20,036)
635 - - 635
Br Fit EUCGRIESN - REE PR 12

18 7 F8 B 5 1805 °F 1 12 B SH A AN & T
BEZHMEREELEREEBR
R AEKR - At - WERIZEH
ARGt E b BEEFHEMA

ERBE -



(b)

Liquidity risk (b) RBELRR
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEEETREIKEEEEEEAR
responsible for their own cash management, including E7HEEE  BERSASEH
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the KENHIEERAENERIRS S
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, ko WEEEBRE THEERENKX
subject to approval by the Company’s board when FE - BRARBEZGIE - K
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of SECBXAETHERERSES
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor R UBREARFTRAS L
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains Brral A mis L8R 2 BHHEERK
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable EXTESREEY THEABRRES
marketable securities and adequate committed lines B UENERCHRHESTE -
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TERERAEEEHEEN 2R
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RKZHBTEHBNEE - HELRE
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the HESEEBEERAADOF R
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (i Z2 IR 2 MEAKR W17 X
payments computed using contractual rates or, if FECHENTR) RSB AR
floating, based on rates current at the end of the &R RHER
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2020
It et 22
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 years
EHRER 1R BE1F
RAE BeREAE EEX BAHR5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T#7 F#7r Tz TE7
Trade payables EREGE 1,362 1,362 1,362 =
Other payables and accrued charges  EMEMFELEAER 186,626 186,626 186,626 =
Lease liabilities HEARE 28,961 30,198 18,788 11,410
216,949 218,186 206,776 11,410
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(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) REBEEEME)

2019

—E-NE
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 years
CLN $ TR BR1E
REE  RenseH EEX BAREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT AT AT
Trade payables e e 12,641 12,641 12,641 -
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EHERFEREAER 151,596 151,596 151,596 -
Amount due to a related party Ef—2BEALHE 402 402 402 -
164,639 164,639 164,639 -

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits, loans receivable and lease liabilities. Deposits
placed and borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is shown below.
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(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of

the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less net

interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at the

end of the reporting period.

Variable rate deposits:
Bank deposits and cash at
bank

Net fixed rate deposits/
(borrowings):

Loans receivable

Lease liabilities

Total net deposits

BREH
RITFRRE
Ré

FRFER

(c) FEmb(4E)
FIEEE
TRFMAEERZHRBR2ER

FRR (BRI EFRM 2R A EF
B RZIAR)ZMEAE -

2020 2019
—BC%F N5
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERA= BB E
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
FET FET
1.9% 107,578 2.2% 61,305
5.0% — 48.0% 117,424  5.0% — 48.0% 89,147
4.6% (28,961) N/ATNEF —
88,463 89,147
196,041 150,452

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#H %



(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated losses by HK$807,000 (2019:
HK$460,000). Other components of equity would not
be affected (2019: HKS$NIl) by the changes in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end
of the reporting period. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and classified
as financial assets at FVPL (see note 17).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities
and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% (2019: 5%) in equity price, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by HK$2,916,000 (2019: HK$3,852,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be
affected (2019: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2019.

(e)

B A (B 4% L B

AEEmEREFERIRDER
BAFEAFABZZEHEEZ
BAKREZRABRES (R K
17)

REBZ EREREBZMERK
GEM LT - EBEZH LT HERE
PIFEAHRHEMITERECRBUAR
REBZRBESFTRMELESR
RIE - IREHEEGRBEAREEMER
BEAOMNTRITE

R-ZE-TFE=A=+—8 4
BABIR EF TBE% (ZF— N
F:65%) MABEMESHTE - K
SEZBREBBRRFTEEER
/102,916,000 T (= F—H
1 3,852,000/870) » EfbirAHE
SO BT EIHE(ZT—NF

=
THIT) o

%ﬂ&%ﬁ%%)&ﬁm“A%x
PEEHRZANEEE  ZHRRK
BHiEHEH DN ERBARELER
EEAREFTEANAEERZ R
R ANE BAZRAERER
ZEHESBMTA  ARNBEAEEH
BRAKRE 2 A FEBSRIEHBR
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(f)

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and non-financial assets
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial assets and non-financial assets
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) M AFEFECGE)
() BAFEAEBZZHBEERH
EHEE(E)

(i) Financial assets and non-financial assets
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ATEERE)

TREMAAEESHEERIFE

EMEEL N TEFEER -

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
assets and non-financial assets:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R EZR E=H @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
Fair value measurementat R-BE-ZE=A=+-
31 March 2020 AZATERHE
Investment property REME - 22,000 - 22,000
Financial assets at FVPL: BRAFEFABRZ
CREE:
— Listed equity securities — REBZ LTREES
in Hong Kong 69,849 - - 69,849
— Unlisted equity fund — BBEINZELED
outside Hong Kong BRAES - 7,120 - 7,120
69,849 29,120 - 98,969
Fair value measurement at R-ZE-NE=ZF=+—
31 March 2019 AZATETE
Financial assets at FVPL: BAFEFABRZ
CREE:
— Listed equity securities — RNEBZ ETRAES
in Hong Kong 92,269 - - 92,269
— Unlisted convertible bonds ~ — R&# 7 3 F i Al %
in Hong Kong &% - - 12,182 12,182
— Unlisted equity fund — BABIZELT
outside Hong Kong BAES - 9,307 - 9,307
92,269 9,307 12,182 118,758

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

HEZZ-_ZFR-_F—NF
ZA=+—BLFE F—%
ME—HoETEER . E
BE=-REANEL - NEE
ZHERRRBEERNTEERE
T 2WMARERBHEER -
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(f)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and non-financial assets
measured at fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of the Group’s investment property
as at 31 March 2020 is determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis using market data which is
publicly available.

The fair values of the unlisted equity fund as at
31 March 2020 and 2019 are determined with
reference to the net asset value of the fund which
are provided by the broker.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the unlisted convertible bonds of
HK$12,182,000 as at 31 March 2019 represented
the aggregate of the fair value of the bonds as if
they did not include a conversion option and fair
value of the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the bonds as if they did not
include a conversion option was determined using
discounted cash flows method. A discount rate of
10.08% was applied. The fair value measurement
was negatively correlated to the discount rate.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
in the convertible bonds was determined using
Binomial Lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement was the expected volatility. An
expected volatility of 70% was applied. The fair
value measurement was positively correlated to
the expected volatility.
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(f)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Financial assets and non-financial assets
measured at fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The above fair values were determined with
reference to valuation carried out by an
independent valuer. Movement of the unlisted

(f 2AFEFEE)

() BRAFESEZTHBEERF
EHEE (&)

B FE =R FEAFEZEH
(#&)

LA HETI2E B ER
ETZHEETE - FRE=MR
AR Em AR ES 2 A FE

convertible bonds in fair value measurements FFTEEHNT
within Level 3 during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
—E_EHF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
At the beginning of the year REH] 12,182 11,911
Interest received BgFE (240) (240)
Fair value gain recognised in RiBmPER 2 A FERE
profit or loss 58 511
Settlement B (12,000) —
At the end of the year REXR — 12,182

The fair value changes are included in “fair value
loss on financial assets at FVPL, net” under
“revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2020 and 2019.

B A EZB T AGZEER
KMegs 1B TRAFERA
BamseREEZ RN FEEBR
FE o

(i) LFZAFEIEZSHMTA
AFH

AREE IR AR S E A SR 2
SRMTAREMEEERN T -F
FEN_ZET-NF=ZA=1+—HZ
N ETEEREZR -
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows from financing activities.

At 1 April 2018 R=Z-N§MA—-AH

Changes from financing cash BEREHRERH :

flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans — #MiERITEF 2 5508

Repayment of bank loans EERITER

Interest on bank loans RITEE 2 FE

Total changes from financing BMEREREZHER
cash flows

Exchange adjustments EHAE

Other changes: Hit @5 :

Transfer to operating activities ~ EEZ L& H
Interest on bank loans (note 5(a) HITERZME(HiE5()

Total changes g

At 31 March 2019 R=ZZ2-h&E=ZA=+—-H

Impact on initial application of & X ERE B ISRE %R
HKFRS 16 (Note) F16 R T B (W iT)

At 1 April 2019 R-E-AFENAE—A
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TRAMASRESHEDHELEZAEER
B EREReNMFRSED RUEHE
EZBBENEARSREEKAIAKRE
MERNAKREZGARERERTHE
REWEHELEZAE -

Amount
due to a Bank Lease
director loans liabilities Total
EE—%
EEXE RITER HE&E Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
(note 23)
(Hizt23)
562 99,976 - 100,538
- 93,628 - 93,528
— (187,056) - (187,056)
- (2,712) - 2,712)
— (96,240) - (96,240)
— (6,448) - (6,448)
(562) — - (562)
— 2,712 - 2,712
(562) 2,712 — 2,150
— — 58,352 58,352
- - 58,352 58,352




Amount

due to a Bank Lease
director loans liabilities Total
Ef—%
EERE RITEX HESE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
(note 23)
(Hri223)
Changes from financing cash BEHREHESE :
flows:
Capital element of lease BENEERE 2RSS
rentals paid — - (21,532) (21,532
Interest element of lease ENHERS 2B
rentals paid - - (1,871) (1,871)
Total changes from financing MEREREL BB
cash flows — — (28,409) (28,4093)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - (1,915) (1,915)
Other changes: Hith 25 :
Adjustment as a result of early  IRERIFAEMEZ HE
termination of leases — - (5,944) (5,944)
Interest on lease liabilities HEGGEZFE
(note 5(a)) (H#t5(a) - - 1,871 1,871
Total changes SEyEE - - (4,073) (4,073)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-EF=H=t-H - - 28,961 28,961
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using Kiat - REBER -_Z—NFENA—BRBAKE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, SEMEVIFERAEAMBREERFE16
comparative information is not restated. See note 2(c). 8o BB E HBRERTEEY - K
MisE2(c)
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(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
2020 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Contracted but not provided for BRI 4B REE
— acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
were payable as follows:

1FR
1 FRESFR

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 April
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 2(c)). From 1 April 2019 onwards,
future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(j), and
the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments
are disclosed in note 23.
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R-B-EBEFE=A=+—HKREFT

MARGEDERREBE 2EREK
EOT
2020 2019
—EEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
= 212

R-ZZE-AE=HA=+—8 " 8
FTAREKCEHEEFZBERR
HENREENT -

HK$’000
FET

27,685
35,232

62,917
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At 31 March 2020, the Group had general banking facilities
amounting to HK$43,668,000 (2019: HK$46,688,000) which
are secured by:

(i) personal guarantee given by a director of a subsidiary;

(i)  pledged bank deposit of a subsidiary of HK$Nil (2019:
HK$7,003,000); and

(i) trade receivables of a subsidiary of HK$Nil (2019:
HK$38,304,000).

At the end of the reporting period, these facilities have not
been utilised (2019: HK$NIl).

On 5 July 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
in Earth Limited (“Earth”), which is principally engaged in
property investment and its major asset was a residential
property in Hong Kong classified as investment property.

On 16 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Max Target Investment Limited (“Max Target”),
which had its major asset of a cross-boundary vehicle license
driving between Hong Kong and the PRC and classified as
an intangible asset.

In the opinion of management, the acquisitions were in
substance an acquisition of the investment property and
intangible asset from Earth and Max Target respectively,
rather than business acquisitions and therefore were
excluded from the scope of HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”. As such, the acquisitions were not
disclosed as business combinations in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 3.

R-_ZE-_ZTF=A=+—H0 KEEZ—
MERITRLE /& 43,668,000 T (ZE— N,
F 1 46,688,000 L) © LA THI S IBEIER
TE'EI :

iy —HRBRAAZ—RBEFMEHRZ
EASEAR

iy —MERBARZEERBETERS
B o(=Z & — L F 1 7,003,000/%
7o) i &

iy —HEHNBRARZEKESRESE
/% T(= = — L F : 38,304,000/%

RZZE-NFELARR  AEBWEIIK
BRAR([HIR]) 2 =8B A R - Hx
ERNFENERE MEZBZEER/WORR
REREYEZ —HEBEEYE -

AZZE-AFNATRA - AEEWER
AEREBRRAB([BXR]) 22 MBRAHE
7 ZAFCHEREB RS EZHEITER
ZERER D BRETLEE °

BEERS  WERBEE DRI
KBRPBREMERBLEE - MW
BEK BUEBRATEMBHREERNE
BRI EHAG I Z8E - Fitt - thFUWHE
WERBEEVBRELENE IR 2HRE
BEREBAG -

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#H %



The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this BRZBRSITWBCEERATEAEZE
transaction were as follows: BT

Earth Max Target Total
2R s X e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET

Investment property REYE 19,948 — 19,948
Intangible asset mEEE - 1,470 1,470
Financial assets at FVPL BATEGAESZEREE — 11 11
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSFEY 64 8 72
Other payables and accrued charges — E {5018 & B+ & (12) (188) (200)
Amounts due to former shareholders — JEf AT AR FKIA (17,105) (2,158) (19,263)
2,895 (857) 2,038
Assignment of shareholders’ loans ERR R 2B 17,105 2,158 19,263
Total consideration BRE 20,000 1,301 21,301
Consideration satisfied by: UT5EEZHZRE :
Cash BRe — —* —*
Consideration shares of the Company A2 & Z X B &H
(note 27(a)(iii)) (Btat 27(a)i) 20,000 — 20,000
Loans receivables (note 28(a)) FEWE R (B 7t 28(a) - 1,301 1,301
20,000 1,301 21,301
Net cash inflow arising on the WEEEZRERA
acquisition: REE
Cash consideration paid BEARERE - - -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired  PIUEIR & RIRESZEY) 64 8 72
64 8 72
* The cash consideration was at HK$2. ’ RERER2BT -
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On 30 April 2018, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Achieve Plus Investment Limited (“Achieve Plus”),
all the obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred
by Achieve Plus to the Company and shareholder’s loan
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$8,500,000.

On 9 January 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interest in Starry Crystal Limited and its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Sau San Tong Macau Limited, (together with
“SC Group”), all the obligations, liabilities and debts owing
or incurred by SC Group to the Company and shareholder’s
loan to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$1.

The assets and liabilities of SC Group and Achieve Plus
disposed at completion date comprise of:

R-Z—N\FHA=+8  AEBEBEXN
BEBRARRAD 22 BERHE
IR AE R AN AEZ AEEYE - &8
BEREEURBRRERTEIE=FH 2
R84 8,500,000 7T °

R-ZZE-_ZTF-ANA AEBLERE
BRABREFZEMBERAREFZE(R
FOERRBI(RERESE]) 228K
At mEKEMERKIELERNAR
AZMBELE  AREREBARENEL
F=NZBRRER  KRELBER1ET -

RERAPHENREEBERRNZEE
REEBTE:

2020 2019

—BRF —E-NF

SC Group Achieve Plus

mEEHE KA

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Investment property WEME - 8,001
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - 123 KRR 8 295
Trade receivables e E 5 /I8 2 -
Other receivables H i E U RIE 1 14
Cash and cash equivalents HehReSEY 342 -
Other payables H At T 5/ (41) -
Current tax payable FEfT & BAFL IR = (1)
Amount due to the Group e AR E B FIE (1,938) (6,312
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e — R R B A B 30E - (2)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of e (ak) EEZFE (1,626) 2,995
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(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration

Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of
Non-controlling interests
Shareholder’s loan disposed

Net cash (outflow)/inflow on disposal
of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed

*

The cash consideration is HK$1.
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HEMB AR Z(BE), K

REeHE
FREEREE(BE)ZFHE
el 5

AT ERRRER

HEMNBRARZHRECRE),
TAFE

SHERERE
Pt ERE RREEFED

*

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
SC Group Achieve Plus

mERE SRR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
—* 8,500

1,626 (2,995)
(63) -
(1,938) (5,312)
(375) 193

—* 8,500

(342) —
(342) 8,500

HReRER1ET -



Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEBEAEMSE

Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBTZTEEEAE 2T (B FEH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s HTHEEEN FARRES 2K
directors as disclosed in note 7 and senior BHEREMNTFEREEAB ZRIE)N
management, is as follows: ™o
2020 2019
—EEF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Directors =
Directors’ fee =Yk 600 547
Salaries, allowances and other benefits #3285 & E b2 7 720 1,584
Contributions to defined contribution  REMH“FURIRET 27 5%
retirement plan 36 42
Equity-settled share-based payment R EER O
expense — 2,202
1,356 4,375
Senior management SHREBEAE
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 3284 &K Hith g 7 3,600 3,600
Contributions to defined contribution S EtFGRIRET 2] 2 (5%
retirement plan 18 18
Equity-settled share-based payment EREERONRFALZ
expense - 550
3,618 4,168
4,974 8,543
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FMeBEat AIBEIRA (RN
5(b)). 5(b)) °
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(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMBEEALRS

The Group entered into the following material related REBNFRNGETUTEKXNBE
party transactions during the year: ATRS -
2020 2019
—BRF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of goods to a holder of M—EIEERERSBAEE
non-controlling interest Bm - 97
Sales of goods to a holder of non-controlling interest M—ZERERFEABEEED
were made at similar terms as the Group grants to DIEARERTEMEF 2 B LK
other customers. SRIEH o
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the BB AT 2 EHRN ISR R &
statements of financial position and in note 20. MIEFE20 #5 55 o
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(a)

Statement of financial position

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a related party

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

(a) #BMRRE

2020 2019
—E_THF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
ERBEE
BB AR ZITE 4 4
REEE
P NGIE S 509,531 517,409
FERFRTE - e REAEW
P QL] 1,331 1,338
AT UL I F IR - 1,866
BERBELEEY 218 127
511,080 520,740
REBEE
AN ENGIE S 4,103 4,107
H bR R R EATE A 2,863 2,972
JERAE A L5008 - 1,046
6,966 8,125
RBEEFHE 504,114 512,615
EEFHE 504,118 512,619
BARLHE
f& A 120,079 109,268
i 384,039 403,351
R 504,118 512,619
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(b) Movements in components of equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

components of equity during the year are as follows:

At 1 April 2018

Changes in equity for 2019:

Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year

Equity-settled share-based transaction

At 31 March 2019 and
1 April 2019

Changes in equity for 2020:
Loss and total comprehensive loss for

the year
[ssue of shares

At 31 March 2020
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H=2-NEBA-R

“E-NEZEREE.
EnEER2AERES

ERESRONTRS

R-8-nNE=f=1-BR-%
-1¥RA-H

“-enRERY
SNERRRERALE

G

RZB-EF=f=1-A

Note
3

2

2

(b) EZBIEH
RARE AR R 2 B Bl #E 25 30 5 &
B FBENT
Share-based

Share Share payment  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
A ROEE  REAREE gkl ERAE
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
109,268 778,605 2,022 (351,627) 538,468
- - - (30,252) (30,252)
- - 4,403 - 4,403
109,268 778,605 6,625 (381,879 512,619
- - - (28,501) (28,501)
10,811 9,189 - - 20,000
120,079 787,794 6,625 (410,380 504,118




At 31 March 2020, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of
these subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 are set out below:

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital
kL 3k BRTRMERARHE
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBRLRSHMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US1 each

; 1000 BERAE 1 XL hh
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
;i 1REREE1ETLRA

Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each

(3 1REREE 1 ETRA
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

B 100REHRAE1ZTL R
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each

B 0REREE1ZTLRA
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each

(3 0REREE1ZTLRG
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each

B 100REHRAE1ZT2RIA
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US1 each

B 100REREE 1 XL hh
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each

(35 10RERAE I ZTLRIA
Linstitut Sau San Tong de la recherche Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

scientifique de beauté (en France) a Limited
&% 100 ERAEE 1 ZTL R

RIZB-ZEF=A=+—H ARFAHEE
FEER TIMB AR (RMABRAF]
AR EBAINKSL ML - AAE
HEBMABRABDKRBER 2 EER
BHEAERD - R BEAN - RS
BRHIREAKR - ZEHBRARANR_ZT-F
FZRA=1T—BZ&#HBEWT :

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRELLA

Direct Indirect  Principal activity

L BE  TEER

100% - Investment holding
RERR

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Investment holding
RERR

100% - Investment holding
HRR

100% - Investment in securities and investment holding
REEFRREER

100% - Inactive
ﬁﬂ)&%

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Inactive
5

100% - Inactive
EEez
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Name of company

AER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)

REBEXABHNNT - (8)

Bravo Media Limited

Gold Platform Holdings Limited

Creative Time Investments Limited

Briliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited (*SST(SH)'")
(note (i) (7))

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou)
Limited (‘SST(HZ)")

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd.
(‘SSTISHDY') (note (i) (#iz ()

Sau San Tong (Beiing) Investments Limited

Machiko Enterprises Inc.

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen)
Limited (‘SST(SZ)’)

Yield Soar Limited
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Place of
operations

gEY

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Bk
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
3

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAKE

1 share of US§1 each
1REREB1 T Bh

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAE1ET LR

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 XL RN

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI T2 RR

100 shares of USS$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT RS

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 R EHEE 1 %R
100 shares of US$1 each
100RERER 1 ZTLRA
10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE 1 ET RN

100 shares of US1 each
100REREET ETRH

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREDE 1 ZT RN

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZTRA

1 share of US$1 each
I GlREIYA Vi

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERERENLS
Direct Indirect
E# 3

100% -

100% -

100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 50%
- 51%
- 50%
- 100%
- 100%
- 51%
- 100%

Principal activity

IRRR

Investment holding
REZRK

Investment holding
n
X

REH

Investment holding

Investment holding

RELK

Provision of management consultancy services

REUEERARS
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
RERR

Inactive

e

w

Investment holding

e
REBR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RARE



Name of company

AER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)

REBEXRBHNANY - (§)

Silver Ally International Limited
RBERERAT

Silver Shore Holdings Limited

Win Ease (BVI) Limited
RIEERAA

Profit Hunting Development Limited

Incorporated in the United States of America

(USA’):
FETEEFE (X)L -

Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific

Research Institute Limited

Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REFZMAL -

SCO Talent Search Company Limited

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited

ESEERAR

pesll]

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited
EaEraRRARART

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy

Trim Institute Limited

B A ESXR IR RS VAR

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy

Trim Institute (TST) Limited

Place of
operations

LEduE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

i
/

Hong Kong
7

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong

EHEERRARBHERET L(XVE)ERAR B

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAHE

1 share of US$1 each
1RERERI T RR

1 share of US$1 each
I GlREIYA Vi

1 share of US$1 each
1IRERERI ET KA

1 share of US1 each
B GlREIYA Vi

1 share of US$1 each

1RERAE 1 ZTLRD

1 share of HKS$1
1R B2k

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,0008 10,000 B2 R 17

100 shares of HK$100
10010078 2B 13

18,750 shares of HK$18,750
18,7501 18, 750 BT 2 k3
10,000 shares of HK$4,905,100

10,000 4,905,100 &7 2 fx {3

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERERELS
Direct Indirect
E# B

100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

IERK

Property holding
RENE

Invest

ment holding
REER

Investment in securities

Investment holding

RERK

Inactive

m
B
Taks
M

Inactive
TEE¥

Sale of health and beauty products and
investment holding
HERRRETERRRERR

Inactive
i

Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUZTRGERE
Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXARGERE
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Name of company

ARER

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)

REEIMAL - (8)

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy
Trim Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited

Place of
operations

gEY

Hong Kong

BERRXRRRERRN O (RRE)ARAR B

Sau San Tong Management Limited
BHEERERLA

SST Advertising Agency Limited
BEEEREARAT

Moon Profit Limited
HARERAA

Highlight International Trading Limited
SREREZERAT

Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Limited
['SSTHL')
EIEREPRARAT(ES2RERR])

Wealthy Sound Limited
FRRRAT

Winic Management Limited

KNEEARAT

Winner Sight Limited
RERRAR

Jadepower International Limited

ZNERERAT

BUML
XBAB

Wide Duo Limited
TEERAT

Annual Report 2019/20 F£E#RE

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

37

Hong Kong

37

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong

3

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

R
li

Hong Kong

R
li

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAKE

100 shares of HK$100
100100872 &

100 shares of HK$100
1001008 2

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,000% 10,000 &7t (3

1 share of HKS1
1R1ET &G

100 shares of HK$100
00/ 10052 17

100 shares of HK$100
10081008 285
10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,000/ 10,000%7C 2 13
1 share of HK$1

1R1BTL 2R

2 shares of HK$2
22T R

1 share of HKS$1
1R1ETZ R

100 shares of HK$19,797,305
100/ 19,797,305 7.2 k13

1 share of HK$1
1R BT 2B

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

ERERERRLA

Direct

EE

Indirect

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

75%

100%

100%

100%

100%

80%

80%

Principal activity

IRRR

Provision of beauty and slimming services
REXAREBRE

Provision of management consultancy services

REEBENRG

Provision of advertising agency services

RERERERS

Investment holding
RERR

Sale of health and beauty products
HERERZAED
Property holding
RENX
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REHR

Inactive

grex

Inactive

gﬁﬂAA%

Provision of a proprietary internet platform
to promote and sell simming beauty and
health related services and products and
investment holding
RUSEBATS  NEEREEEREARR
BRBRERER - D RREARR

Inactive
fmax



Name of company

ARER

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)

REBHMAT - (8)

Trilion Well International Finance Company
Limited

ERERIBERAR

Sun Fung Capital Limited
HERE (TN ARLA

| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited
EREREEER LA

Kowloon West Properties Development Limited

Earth (note (i)
kWi )

Max Target (note (iv)
BR(W )

Incorporated in the PRC:

KOG Ay :

LE-EBRERERAR( LE-ER)
(note (i and (i) (H ) &)

LERGALHEERRAR(RAAL)
(note (i) (#:2 i)

- TREFRECRERAT(—TBMI)
(note (i) (2 )

—EREBEEMMBRAF-TRAN)
(note (i) ()

BREZAFALR)ERLR fote (i)
WEm)

Place of
operations

LEduE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

3

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

The PRC
PE

The PRC
E
The PRC
R
The PRC
R
The PRC

hE

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAHE

1 share of HKS$1
1R1BT2 RS

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,0008 10,000 B T2 R H

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,000 10,000 87T 2

1 share of HKS$1
1R1BETZRG

10,000 shares of HK$10,000
10,000 10,000 7T 2 13

2 shares of HK$2
2R 2B

Registered capital of US§150,000
AR 150000%

Registered capital of US$5,000,000
& 45,000,000 %7
Registered capital of HK$3,500,000
873,500,007
Registered capital of HK$3,500,000
T E 43,600,000 %7
Registered capital of HK$1,000,000

HER1,000,00057T

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

ERERERELA

Direct

L

Indirect

S

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

IERK

Investment holding
REER

Provision of money lending services

REHERHE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRY

Property holding
RANE

Investment holding

Investment holding

RELK

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXAREERS
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products

PERENARERED

Provision of beauty and slimming services
REXARGBRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services
REXEREBRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RESARGERK
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Place of Particulars of issued

Name of company operations  and paid up capital

AAER Y EETRARERAGE

Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)

RPERRT - (£)

BaE(HR)ARERHAERLA ote (i) The PRC Registered capital of RMB6,000,000

(Wit y)
hE HERAR6,000,0007T
LEBERELERAT note (i) (H#1) The PRC Registered capital of RMB500,000
hEl &R AR 5000007

BEREDA(LS)ERAA Mnote (i) (W2f)) ThePRC  Registered capital of US$500,000

hE iR ER500,000%7

BRERAH(LE)ERAT note (i) (W)  The PRC Registered capital of US$300,000

hEl ifaA300,000% T

B2 EREHER L note (i) The PRC Registered capital of RMB20,000,000

(Wit )
hEl &R ARS 200000007
EaE2EEA R BRAT ot (i) The PRC Registered capital of US$150,000
(Wit iy)
hE &R 150,000 %7

Note:

(i) Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),
SST(SH) and Ei§—3F15, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SST(SH), the directors concluded that the Group has dominant
power to direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on
the basis of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of
respective companies because of contractual arrangements with
the other shareholders of respective companies.

(if) The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

(iii) The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

(iv)  The subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 March

2020.
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Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREARRELA
Direct Indirect  Principal activity
E# BE  IEER
- 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
and investment holding
REREARERRESR
- 100%  Provision of franchise services
RUEMEA R
- 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUEZRRERRE
- 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUXRRERMRS
- 100%  Inactive
Erex
- 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services and
investment holding
RUEZAREEREI RREER
Mt -

0] BENEE{EH A SST(SHD)  SST(SH) &
EB—FBSSTSHZ2EHBRAT)Z
50% AR MEREMBBEAREMRR
ZANTY WEERAREEHATE
BH - WRASEHEEARES ST
%%%ﬁ%ﬁs&me&smwmzm%
JEE e

(ii) ZEMBRATAIINEBELE 2 FAERL -

(i) FHIWBRBAPIIGELEREZEAE
=,

A

vy ZEWBRAAERBE_T_ZTF=H
=t HIEFERRE -



The following table lists out the information relating to the

subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive (10ss)/
income

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

FFEREZA L

FRBEE
RBARE
FRBAE

BE/(BR)3E

R < RE(E

Y

EmEnl/ (BR)

2E(BR)Ka
s

NEEFERES 2
B/ (B8

BN R ELD
e
RELLED RE
mE - F8
RERERD RS
nE  FE
REBEED RS

mE HE

TR EREASBEAEAIFERELS
(TFFfER s ) 2B AR ZER » TX
E 52 B E R ST~ R 3H AT

- I
2020
—B-%F

SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)

and its and its and its

subsidiary, subsidiary, subsidiary,

LtE-%E8 —EBRY  —EBMN

SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

SSTIHL kHE ki kE

BUML 5%  HELR WEAR  HELR
XEXE  REER LB-TE  RHAL -ESRN B8N
20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET FET FET
- 42,944 - 9,961 5,279 -
11,005 3,021 44,788 258,397 96,707 3,602
(6,983) (58,391) (61,065) (169,679) (151,157) (25,839)
- - (3,636) (8,779) (2,337) -
4,022 (12,426) (19,913) 94,900 (51,508) (22,237)
804 (3,107) (9,957) 43,815 (25,239) (10,896)

- - 1 1,291,980 2,961 -
2,973 (1,511) 1,177 24,421 (6,787) 92
- - (941) (7,761) 1,343 472

595 (228) 588 11,966 (3,326) 45

- - - (26,368) - -

3 (50) (10) 81,492 260 -

- - - (3,076) (63) -

- - - (26,368) - -
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NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive (I0ss)/
income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net
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FFERED AL

FRBEE
RYEE
RBRE
FRBAMR

EE/(BE)FE
SRR RE(E

ER(BE)/HH
2E(BE) e
a5

NEEFERERD 2
(B#8)/ &

ENEERER 2
¥}
RELLED AE
nE FE
REREED A S
nE  FH
REBERD HE

e W
NE ' FE

2019

—Z-NF
SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
HE—%5 —E/RI —EEmM
SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
SSTIHL RE RE RH
BUML ez MHBAF MEas  MBAA
ZERE  REER LE-TB8  REHAL —THRAN —EEmM
20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fét  TET  TET  TET  TAT  TER
— 44,451 328 3,422 467 —
11,030 2,422 47,215 268,890 95,918 3,696
(9,981) (58,388) (63,804) (140,260) (142,449) (26,497)
- - (3,888) — — —
1,049 (11,515) (20,149 132,052 (46,064) (22,801)
209 (2,879) (10,075) 61,375 (22,571) (11,172)
— — 33 2,365,690 3,130 —
(390) (915) (710) 30,365 (9,552) 93
- - (1,182) (10,236) 888 514
(79) (229) (356) 14,977 (4,680) 46
- - - (21,389) — —
(92) (57) 1 80,680 (3,793) —
- - - (1,238) (19) -
- - - (117,628) - -



On 1 June 2020, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser, an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group has
conditionally agreed to sell its entire equity interest in Earth
Limited together with the outstanding amount owned by
Earth Limited to the Group at the total consideration of
HK$23,000,000 (the “Disposal”’). As at the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, the Disposal has
not been completed yet.

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a) Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant
and equipment after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

RZZE_FEFNA—H AEEREH
(—BBAE=F) LB K EEHE -
Bt AEEAKERELE LN MRE
RAFz2HRAERERMIRER AT
ERHAEB 2 RKEESHE RELHEA
23,000,000 T([HHEFIEH]) - R&ZZHE
mEMBRAMAEZER  HEFHEMAKRT
& o

ESRAASESHBRRERMAZIL
fiat R HI BT AN SR B 2 RSO R A
EEREATE - B BHHRERLE
B ANE T 2 M A R
B o B AR B ST BOR 2 R g s
T -

(@) #E

AEERERMGFNBEERETE
ME - BELREZGEFTAIERSF
HMEEBETEER - WWihET R
BRINGEBUZYE - WBERRME
BRI AFHR O BELRIEL -
A A KR FEEEX
TEBRMRRZITHMELEAE
b - A ERF DR LA EEF
H - RIEEEREMTEER %
HEMHCERRBEARM LD
B SIERIE 2 BE o
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(b)

()

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of these cash flows.

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables and
loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions as well as forward-looking information as at
the end of the reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Annual Report 2019/20 FEH %

(b)

(c)

BERERE

HEBERAREZRGEEERE
BEBEZRSELEN Z(EREE-
EREEHEEREFEHERSE
EEUBHELZBRASRER
BEZMAE M EZFRE
mMERE -

BWE 5 RERE At ERRENAR
ERERRAEEERE

AEBEFEEMEEBBERGEE
FEME 5 7R I Eo Al YR IR A Je
EWER RN EEIRREE HEE
SKIER A R HE - BHEEER
BASEEREEEBREE(GER
AEBRAZRAR) R2HHRZA
H e FEORI KB A D A 50 A B BT B
BRFE - WA ERBERTE
¥ RAHEBAEE/TERKE S
TR o E Al e YR IR A Ko FE MR B R K
MEZEREE - M ERmEGaT
BFHEHHE RERRE



(d)

(e)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
assessed periodically to the effect of all changes in tax
legislation.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
note 16.

(d)

(e)

Frig®t

ERAERBEBIREETRSZ
R BT 5 B O R BT 4R B
BRI 2B « AR BB R
92 MBHE WA H T
X o %252 B IR T A5 B
BRBEDIR BT -

FERE

AEBETEHRL2EFEREDIT - &
HEmZAKHEEBAREREZ
kA mMENFEZREE -
RIFLERN  WEEJREERKE
EREMGEAERFE AAKHE
EWETFEZEE HAREFPRR
HR B8 HERERZEER
AR EESH BT R - Mt s E
ZEBRAGER BB

FEZEEEENGEAHBRRE
KMzt 16 FIRER o
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Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts”, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2020 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group and will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 — Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business

Amendments to HKFRS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of material

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them will not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019. Under
the transition methods chosen, comparative information is
not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2(c).

Certain figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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BEZSHEAMBHRRTERY  HEE
AR ARERHZEEBRE T _TF=
A=+ —AEFERRERBNZELRE
MBHRRERRRZETET AR —E
ERFBEMBHRELENE7RIRRE
Wl BRBENATARERAEEEBY
KRB _ZFNA-BRZEMARZE
FTEAMAE R 2 F18

#FEmERIEMH
EHIEN FHES R R

BRPBHREER
£ 3RIERTA

RBZEE

FEMBHRELEL EBRZER
F1REREEE
HERIE 8RBT A

AR IE7 R4 bl 3% R B R B A AR
BHEAZEE 25 AEEEEAR
RMZFEI BT e U AREBGREWE
BREREAERTZE -

AEER -_T-NFOA-RNTERE
BUBRELERF165 - REMEZB
BIE - LBEMIEES - BHEEHHK
REB 2E—TFBERME20)KE -

ETHFEENR  UHaERFESFS
BRI 25T -



Particulars of investment property held as at 31 March 2020 is as
follows:

Location b 3iE Usage
A&
1. 2nd Floor and Flat Roof &5 Residential
and car parking space on 5 F=

Ground Floor, LAY 38 45-47 55
Ascot Tower piiZan e
No 45-47 Village Road, “EBETAREN
Happy Valley, Kot AL
Hong Kong

Note:

On 5 July 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest
of Earth Limited at the consideration of HK$20,000,000 through issuance
of 67,567,567 new shares of par value of HK$0.16 each of the Company.
Earth Limited is the sole legal and beneficial owner of a residential property in
Hong Kong. On 1 June 2020, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with the purchaser, an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Group has conditionally agreed to sell its entire equity interest in
Earth Limited together with the outstanding amount owned by Earth Limited
to the Group at the total consideration of HK$23,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The
transaction shall be completed upon the fulfiliment of conditions precedent. As
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Disposal
has not been completed yet.

NR_E—_TF=-HA=1+—HBEZREMEF
ERUENE

Percentage held

by the Group Term
rEBEEzEE HEH
100% Long-term lease

iR

—NFEARRA  ARARIEBIETT67,567,567 I
$ Tthﬁﬁaw%EZﬁhf FERR IR B BR A R A
A2 100% & A #E % - B & 20,000,000 7 7T © HEkA
RARA—BEBEEVEZHE—ZEERESHEEBA -
RZZBEZEFRNA—H AEEREH(—BBILE=
FIFUEREESER® Bt AEEAKERER
EERMKBR AR 2 2BRAERER MIKREG R A A
ERAEE REESRE - 1%(%%@%&12%23,000,0005%7‘3
(HEFHE]) - RPBEFILREHER BT EEE - R
ZEFAMBHRREER - tlj’iilﬁrﬁﬂimﬁx
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A &I& ¥

Board of Directors EEg
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. MUI Wai Sum BREEEE
Mr. CHAN Ka Kin PRER 5 A&
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Takashi TOGO BBEL LA
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHITES
Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy Wit
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE
Mr. AU Siu Lun % Ik fm o &
Company Secretary RAME
Mr. CHAN Hin Hang PROTIT SR A&

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee EREEENTMEES

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy HemAt
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREAE
Mr. AU Siu Lun @I fm ot A&
Nomination Committee REZES
Mr. CHAN Ka Kin PRRfE5cE
Mr. MUI Wai Sum BEEREE
Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy fihera i e
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred 2IEREE
Mr. AU Siu Lun % Yk fm T A

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 E#ZKRER AT
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A REE

Authorised Representatives

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin
Mr. MUI Wai Sum

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
2nd Floor

625 King’'s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

Room 23083, 23rd Floor

China Insurance Group Building
141 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office in the Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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Branch Share Registrar and ERROBFETETE
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited EEREBRAA

Level 22, Hopewell Centre B

183 Queen’s Road East SRREBER1835%

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AR L2218

FEFRERT

REIRTT(BAR)BRAT

Kwun Tong Plaza Branch NBEEE

G1 Kwung Tong Plaza FIIRE 68 5%

68 Hoi Yuen Road BIEES G
Kwun Tong, Kowloon BEES 1T
Hang Seng Bank Limited BEERITERAF]
Tsim Sha Tsui Branch NELRE

3/F, 18 Carnarvon Road, IEDIE1857 31
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon KHBEDFT
Nanyang Commercial Bank P R ERAT
Yaumatei Branch JLEE

309 Nathan Road 28 300 5%
Kowloon SR 1T
Website #8uh

www.sst-holding.com

Stock Code

8200
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